
  May 21, 2013

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
Sandi Bloem, Mayor   

Councilmen Edinger, Goodlander, McEvers, Kennedy, Gookin, Adams 
 



CONSENT CALENDAR 



 

CC May 7, 2013 1 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO, 

HELD AT THE LIBRARY COMMUNITY ROOM 
 

May 7, 2013 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Coeur d’Alene met in a regular session of said Council at 
the Coeur d’Alene City Library Community Room May 7, 2013 at 6:00 p.m., there being present 
upon roll call the following members: 
 
Sandi Bloem, Mayor 
  
Woody McEvers  )    Members of Council Present             
Dan Gookin   ) 
Steve Adams   ) 
Deanna Goodlander  )   
Loren “Ron” Edinger   ) 
Mike Kennedy    )   Members of Council Absent 
           
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Bloem called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION:  Pastor Ron Hunter from the Church of the Nazarene provided the invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilman Adams led the pledge of allegiance.    
 
PROCLAMATION:  Councilman Adams presented the proclamation for Bike to Work Month 
for May 2013.  Warren Fischer, Vice Chair of the Pedestrian Bicycle Committee, accepted the 
proclamation.  Mr. Fischer encouraged citizens to participate in the Bike to Work week events 
throughout the week of May 13, 2013.   
 
PRESENTATION: BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF KOOTENAI COUNTY:  Police Chief 
Wayne Longo introduced Ryan Davis, Executive Director, and Pat Whalen, Board President, of 
the Boys and Girls Club of Kootenai County.  Mr. Longo stated that law enforcement has seen 
juvenile crime rates drop in communities where Boys and Girls Clubs exist.   Mr. Davis stated 
that the mission of the club is to serve at risk youth.  He mentioned several of the programs 
provided to the youth, including after school programs and in-home programs that take place 
during key hours for at risk youth.  He stated that their program is unique, as they have paid staff 
and a dedicated facility.  They make programs available and affordable to all kids, with a yearly 
membership fee of $40.00 per year.  He thanked the 20 dedicated board members that currently 
serve.  Mr. Whalen stated that they just successfully completed their Post Falls fundraising, 
including an endowment.  He invited the City Council and community to tour the Post Falls 
facility.  He stated that they strive to be a Kootenai County-wide program and need to move into 
Coeur d’Alene to continue that mission.  Mr. Whalen stated that they would like a facility in the 
area near Borah, Bryan, and Fernan Schools, which are all within a mile and a half of Person 
Field, which is why Person Field would be a desirable location for a future facility.  He believes 
that they could peacefully co-exist with current uses of the field.  They have spoken with the 



 

CC May 7, 2013 2 

School District and Junior Tackle group.  They would like to build and pay for a facility with a 
nominal lease fee back to the City.   
 
Councilman McEvers asked for clarification as to how they fund programs.  Mr. Whalen stated 
that they seek sponsorships, hold fun runs and auctions, and have generous benefactors.   
Councilman McEvers asked how they compare to the Kroc Center.  Mr. Whalen stated that they 
are a youth development agency and take their direction from a national program.  They feed the 
children, spend an hour of time on homework, and then they get to do organized activities.  
Councilman McEvers clarified that they appear to plug the hole of time between school and 
when parents get home from work.  Chief Longo stated that typical juvenile crime occurs 
between 3:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m., so engaging the youth during that time with structured 
programs is important and he encouraged the City Council to go to the website.  Councilman 
Goodlander thanked them for the update, stated that she believes that the opportunity is a 
positive direction for that area of town, and would serve a good purpose.  Councilman Edinger 
stated he is in favor of the Boys and Girls Club, but had concern that it had been less than a 
month since the City acquired Person Field and felt the City should hear some comments from 
our Recreation Department.  Additionally, the City Council had previously stated that they 
would talk to the neighborhood, so it would be important not to rush into something.   
Councilman Edinger stated that the School District could have donated that land to the City or 
the Club.    Mr. Whalen stated that they were hoping to start the conversation tonight.  If Person 
Field does not work then they will continue to look for the right location.  Councilman Gookin 
asked if the Club had met with the residents.  Mr. Whalen stated that they had not yet met with 
the residents, but a community meeting would be a good idea to continue to discuss this idea.  He 
also stated that he would love to host the neighborhood to their Post Falls facility, so they could 
get a feel of what they would be proposing.   Councilman Adams asked what the square footage 
of the proposed facility would be.  Mr. Ryan stated it would be an approximately 10,000 square 
foot facility, similar to the Post Falls facility. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin seconded by Adams to direct staff to coordinate a meeting with 
the Boys and Girls Club, the neighborhood, Junior Tackle, and Parks and Recreation.  Motion 
Carried.  
 
PRESENTATION: MCEUEN PARK CONSTRUCTION UPDATE:  Dennis Grant, 
Engineering Project Manager, informed the City Council that the 2012 McEuen project (on the 
south side of City Hall) has entered the landscaping phase with the paving of the trail to be next.  
The 2013 McEuen project has completed the mass grading and shoring phase.  The trail outside 
the fencing is a good location for citizens to witness the construction activities. Currently the 
contractor is installing stormwater facilities from the splash pad to the harbor house and is about 
50% complete.  The Osprey are back and are nesting on the middle pole.  The contractor is 
beginning to do the footings of the parking structure and elevators.  A traffic route and parking 
map has been distributed to area businesses, the Chamber of Commerce and is available on the 
City web site (www.cdaid.org).  The Third Street boat launch will be temporarily closed between 
June 1 and September 30, which will allow the demolition of the asphalt for the installation of 
stormwater pipes and drains.   Mr. Grant provided a brief budget update stating that the 2012 
project had an engineer’s estimate of $1.56 Million, with the bid coming in at $1.2 million, and 
they are nearing the end of that project and it will be within the bid amount.  The 2013 project 



 

CC May 7, 2013 3 

was bid at $14.8 million, and as of the last progress pay, 11% had been paid out, with 10% 
contract days expired.  The project is on schedule; however, the contractor originally proposed to 
start on the Westside and work toward the east.  They decided to go east to west, so the schedule  
looks like a lag on one end and ahead on another.  Since the project is only at a month and a half, 
it appears to be on schedule.   
 
Councilman Gookin asked if the temporary closure of the launch is set in stone.  Mr. Grant stated 
that the boat launch closure will take place on June 1, 2013; however, the boat moorage docks 
will continue to be open for boats already in the water.  Mr. Grant stated that it appears the locals 
have figured out the traffic routes and he encouraged people to come downtown and visit the 
local area businesses.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Mayor Bloem reminded commenters of the 5-minute allowance for 
public comment and that matters should be related to City government business and asked the 
City Council members to do the same thing during the Council comment period.  
 
Person Field:  Bruce MacNeil, 527 N. 17th Street, stated that he is concerned with the carving up 
of Person Field.  He stated that there is a level of frustration by the neighbors and himself 
regarding the length of time it took to acquire the field.  He feels that the leadership of the City 
and School District pit neighbor against neighbor.  This issue should be tabled, and then revisited 
after the newly elected Mayor and City Council take office in January; then discussions should 
begin with the neighborhood to master plan the field as a neighborhood park.  He did not think it 
was appropriate for the Boys and Girls Club to present the idea of Person Field tonight.  He 
requested the Council reverse their motion.   He further stated that he might run for a position on 
the November ballot. 
 
Councilman Gookin stated that the motion is to meet with the neighbors and asked if Mr. 
MacNeil was opposed to meeting.  Mr. MacNeil stated that he was opposed because he does not 
trust the current Council.  He wants it addressed after the newly elected Council are in office.  He 
does not believe the Boys and Girls Club should be at the table yet.   Councilman Gookin 
believes there is a division in the community, but he does not want to see a pattern that all 
business stops until after the election.  Mr. MacNeil reiterated that he does not want the current 
Council involved in the Person Field discussion, as he does not trust them.  Councilman Gookin 
believes that it would set a precedent and that important issues would not be addressed.  Mr. 
MacNeil does not believe that would be good leadership.   
 
Miscellaneous: Gregory Cook, 11100 Airport Drive, Hayden, stated that he was recently 
appointed as the Executive Director for Panhandle Area Council and that it was his fifth day on 
the job.  He wanted to introduce himself and stated his desire to continue business development 
throughout the region.  He stated that he was excited to work with the City into the future.   
 
Dave Barger, 530 W. Harrison, stated that the people speaking so far this evening have the best 
interest of the community in mind, and there has to be a modicum of trust in those leading the 
City.  He expressed concern with the Consent Calendar items related to public safety as they 
would be common sense items and should be removed for later discussion.  
 



 

CC May 7, 2013 4 

Mathew Ryan, 815 Madison, Post Falls, stated that he likes all the changes in Coeur d’Alene, 
such as the increased number of churches and community involvement.  He would normally 
support the Boys and Girls Club, and had volunteered for their organization many years ago in 
California.  His expressed concern that at any time the Club could adopt a policy regarding 
counseling youth on Planned Parenthood and that Agenda 21 would rear its ugly head and hijack 
the organization.  If there a true separation of church and state, no taxpayer funds should be used 
for morally reprehensible activities.   
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Motion by Goodlander, seconded by McEvers to approve the 
consent calendar as presented.  Councilman Edinger asked that Item 3(g) be discussed 
separately.   
 

1. Approval of Minutes for April 16, 2013. 
2. Setting General Services and Public Works Committees meetings for Monday, May 13th 

at 12:00 noon and 4:00 p.m., respectively. 
3. CONSENT RESOLUTION NO. 13-027  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR 

D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO AUTHORIZING THE BELOW 
MENTIONED CONTRACTS AND OTHER ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR 
D’ALENE INCLUDING APPROVAL OF A LAW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION 
CONTRACT WITH KOOTENAI COUNTY FOR MARINE SERVICES; APPROVAL 
OF A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH KOOTENAI COUNTY SHERIFF’S 
OFFICE FOR MUTUAL ASSISTANCE; APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT WITH 
IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT FOR FIRE PROTECTION WITHIN 
HWY-95 AND I-90 RIGHTS-OF-WAY; APPROVAL OF A PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PANHANDLE AREA COUNCIL (PAC) FOR 
CDBG GRANT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES; APPROVING THE 
DECLARATION OF SURPLUS NON-WORKING PORTABLE SERVICE LIGHT 
TRAILER – STREET DEPARTMENT; AND APPROVAL OF S-3-12, COEUR 
D'ALENE PLACE 20TH ADDITION: FINAL PLAT, SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT 
AND BONDING APPROVAL; AND APPROVAL OF FOURTEEN (14) SEPARATE 
BUT IDENTICAL SEWER LATERAL REPLACEMENT AGREEMENTS WITH THE 
FERNAN LAKE TERRACE SUBDIVISION HOMEOWNERS AS PART OF THE 
2013 OPEN TRENCH PROJECT. 

4. Approval of Beer/Wine License – CDB Hospitality, LLC D/B/A Spring Hill Suites, 2250 
W. Seltice Way  

5. Approval of Beer/Wine License – Transfer from Good Eats, Inc. (Franklin’s Hoagies) to 
Dub Snacks, LLC., 100 N. B Street 

6. Approval of Mobile Food Concession – Lisa Hall for “The Icebox Ice Cream Truck” 
7. Setting of a Public Hearing  –  May 21, 2013 for the Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for 
Plan Year 2012 

 
ROLL CALL:  Goodlander Aye; Gookin Aye; Edinger Aye; Adams Aye; McEvers Aye.    
Motion carried. 



 

CC May 7, 2013 5 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-027 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AUTHORIZING FOURTEEN (14) SEPARATE BUT IDENTICAL SEWER LATERAL 
REPLACEMENT AGREEMENTS WITH THE FERNAN LAKE TERRACE SUBDIVISION 
HOMEOWNERS AS PART OF THE 2013 OPEN TRENCH PROJECT. 
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilman Edinger asked for clarification if all 14 residents have agreed to the 
Open Trench project, as he understood there was a meeting scheduled to discuss the construction 
project on Thursday.  Wastewater Superintendent Frederickson stated that he is unaware of such 
a meeting and that they have secured all 14 signatures.   Mr. Gookin stated that a few weeks back 
Mr. Szmania wanted an accommodation to the west side and wondered if that had occured.  Mr. 
Fredrickson stated that there is not enough of a grade to do a gravity feed, so they will have to 
use a pump.  Councilman Edinger stated that he would like to table this item until the next 
meeting, as he understands the neighbors are not all satisfied with what has transpired, such as 
his daughter and son in-law.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Edinger, seconded by Gookin, to table this item the item to the Council 
meeting of May 21, 2013.    
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilman McEvers stated that it seems that everyone has signed the 
agreements, but some are not happy.  Mr. Fredrickson stated that the main line has been installed 
and they are beginning the process of connecting the houses this week and that he is unaware of 
any issues and that they have been in contact with the neighbor several times, and clarified that 
this will not stop the process.  Councilman Edinger stated that one of the issues is that they were 
told there would be some additional costs to the homeowner if the contractor could not go down 
so many feet.  Mr. Fredrickson stated that he is unaware of the meeting and any additional costs.  
He will talk to the homeowners tomorrow to clarify the issues.  He explained that the soil is 
coarse and specifically on the Szmania property, they thought they would lose the chimney and 
the garage if they continued to dig.  They determined that they cannot do a gravity line on either 
side of the house.   Councilman Goodlander clarified that that area of town was built on wood 
waste/fill and there has been settling in the area and homeowners have already had to do repairs; 
therefore, this is a complicated project.   Mr. Fredrickson stated that if the plumbing code says 
you have to have a certain grade for gravity, and they do not have that grade, then they have to 
pump.  The pump will be at the City’s cost and he will get to the bottom of the concern in the 
morning.  Mr. Fredrickson stated that they will continue with the other homes until the issue with 
the Szmania property is resolved.  Councilman Edinger stated that there is another concern that 
the City will only guarantee the pump for a period of time.  Mr. Fredrickson explained that the 
homeowner will need to pay for the minimal electrical costs and be responsible for repair and 
maintenance of the pump.  This is not unlike what the City did at a restaurant on Sherman 
Avenue.   Councilman Edinger still feels that this could be tabled for the next meeting.  Mayor 
Bloem clarified that the City Council can approve the agreement, with Mr. Fredrickson’s 
statement that he would not continue with that specific property until the issue is resolved.  
Councilman Goodlander called for the question.  Motion carried. 
 



 

CC May 7, 2013 6 

MOTION FAILED:  Motion to table this item the item to the Council meeting of May 21, 2013 
failed.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Goodlander, seconded by McEvers to approve item 3(g).   Motion 
carried, with Edinger and Gookin voting No. 
 
COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS:    
 
Councilman Adams thanked the public for giving their comments this evening and felt they all 
had valid points.  He wanted to speak to Mr. MacNeil’s comments since he seconded the motion.  
He did not realize Mr. MacNeil’s level of compassion and he did not see the acquisition as a 
death but a birth sees it as an opportunity to bringing parties together and start discussions.   
 
Councilman McEvers has been on videotaping the McEuen construction progress, and played a 
4-minute video presentation.   
 
APPOINTMENTS:  The Mayor recommended the appointment of Adam Graves to the Parking 
Commission,  Joe Sharnetsky to the Arts Commission, Jef Lemmon to the Design Review 
Commission, and  Peter Luttropp to the Planning Commission.  
 
MOTION:  Motion by Goodlander, seconded by McEvers  to approve the appointment of Adam 
Graves to the Parking Commission, Joe Sharnetsky to the Arts Commission, Jef Lemmon to the 
Design Review Commission and Peter Luttropp to the Planning Commission.     
 
Motion carried with Gookin and Adams voting No. 
 

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:   City Administrator Wendy Gabriel reported that there is an 
interactive map of other nearby boat launches and traffic routes are available on the City’s main 
web page at www.cdaid.org.  The Coeur d’Alene Arts Commission is seeking artists for the 
McEuen Park Entry Arch.  The arch will be over the main pedestrian entrance to McEuen Park.  
As the gateway between downtown Coeur d’Alene, the park, and lakefront, the Arch will be the 
first impression many visitors see of the park area.  Submission Deadline is May 24, 2013.  To 
download the Call to Artists, visit our website at www.cdaid.org, or call Steve Anthony at 769-
2249 for more information. The City of Coeur d’Alene Arts Commission is also seeking artists 
for a McEuen Park Interactive Sculpture.  The Interactive Sculpture will be located at the 
South/Center Trail Confluence of McEuen Park.  The goal for the Interactive Sculpture is to 
significantly beautify the southern side of the revitalized McEuen Park.  Other than having some 
sort of interactive component, there is no theme to this Call to Artists, allowing for open 
interpretation and creativity to make a lasting impression on residents and visitors.  Information 
packets are available at City Hall, 710 E. Mullan Avenue, or online at www.cdaid.org.  Artist 
proposals are due by 5:00 p.m., June 21, 2013.   Artists with questions are encouraged to contact 
Steve Anthony, Arts Commission Liaison, at 769-2249. Finally, the Coeur d’Alene Arts 
Commission is seeking artists for public art to be located at the McEuen Park Third Street 
Entrance. The goal for the piece is to significantly beautify one of the primary entrances of the 
revitalized McEuen Park.  It is meant to be a piece of public art visually enjoyed by visitors to 
the park, as well as a feature of the park that can be seen by passersby.  Located at a busy 



 

CC May 7, 2013 7 

thoroughfare of the park and neighboring street, the area around the art will receive a lot of 
vehicle and foot traffic as visitors enter and exit the park. Submission Deadline is June 21, 2013.  
To download and print the Call to Artists, visit our website at www.cdaid.org, or call Steve 
Anthony at 769-2249 for more information. The City is pleased to report that the recent Arbor 
Day celebration at Cherry Hill Park on April 27th was a well-attended success.    Activities 
included a free pancake breakfast sponsored by Sun Valley Tree service; followed by art contest 
awards, ceremonial tree planting, door prizes and presentation of the City’s 29th Tree City USA 
honors by Shane O’Shea of the Department of Lands.  Congratulations to Officer Amy Winstead 
who received the “Distinguished Alumni of the Year” at the commencement ceremony for Lewis 
Clark State College last Sunday.  Officer Winstead was honored for her outstanding work in the 
area of domestic violence.  Nearly eleven years ago, the Coeur d’Alene City Council passed an 
ordinance allowing youth representation on City Boards, Commissions, and Committees.  If you 
are interested in serving as a student representative, visit www.cdaid.org and print out an 
informational letter and application form.  Deadline for Applications is May 31st. The 2013 
Summer Arts for Youth program begins in June.  The Coeur d’Alene Arts Commission sponsors 
this award winning arts program for youth.  Please visit our website at www.cdaid.org to 
download the complete brochure. 

 
REQUEST FOR CYCLE PUB AUTHORIZATION:  Mr. Edinger stated that the General 
Services Committee had some discussion regarding the Cycle Pub, whose name may be changed.  
The Committee voted to approve the cycle request.  Councilman Adams asked Mr. Brown to 
provide some comments.  Mr. Brown stated that the business model they copied was from Bend, 
Oregon, and that there is another one in Boise.  The public responds really well to it, and that the 
alcohol is allowed in those two cities, although he would not be requesting it for Coeur d’Alene.  
He would like to provide two-hour tours now through September, and in the off-season, he 
would like to open it up for non-profit fund raising opportunities.  He thinks it will be well 
received in this area.  Councilman McEvers stated that he was wondering how they will get up 
Government Way from Northwest Boulevard.  Mr. Brown stated that there would be a small 
motor.  Councilman Gookin stated that Boise downtown is flat and is concerned about the 
parking and congestion.  Mr. Brown stated that the route proposed would take them from the 
NIC Parking lot to behind Kelly’s pub/Capones, where parking is available they will use parking 
lots, and if right-of-ways are available they will use them.  The driver will always be with the 
bike and if they have to keep moving, they will continue to circle the block.  They will avoid 
downtown Sherman for this year.  Councilman Gookin asked staff if the City has rules about 
slow moving vehicles.  City Attorney, Mike Gridley stated that this is not a motor vehicle so it is 
not governed by the same motor vehicle laws, as it would be classified as a bicycle.  He stated 
that one of the issues is that if they are not serving alcohol, they do not need a permit to operate 
on the streets, as there is nothing in our code regulating it at this time.  Councilman Gookin 
asked how the City had previously regulated the carriage rides.   Captain Childers stated that the 
carriage ride has light and turn signals for safety, and he believes the carriage also has a slow 
moving traffic placard, and the surrey cycle had lights as well.  City Clerk, Renata McLeod, 
stated that in the past the City Council had made motions to approve the services, but no permits 
or other contracts were entered into.  Mr. Brown presented several photographs of the cycle 
model that he would be utilizing.  Councilman Edinger stated that the General Services 
Committee had some discussion regarding the name of the cycle and wondered if Mr. Brown had 
determined a name yet.  Mr. Brown stated that they are still discussing names but no reference to 



 

CC May 7, 2013 8 

alcohol will be used.  Mr. Gridley clarified that there is an open container law that prohibits 
alcohol on city owned property including rights-of-way and if the Council wanted to allow it on 
the cycle, (now or in the future) certain Ordinances would need to be amended.  
  
MOTION:  Motion by Edinger seconded by Adams to permit the cycle request of Mr. Brown.  
Motion Carried.  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-028 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
IDAHO DECLARING PROPERTY AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF 
THE SURPLUS PROPERTY AT AUCTION AND AUTHORIZING PROCEEDS FROM 
SALE TO BE DONATED TO SPECIALIZED NEEDS RECREATION. 
 
Councilman Goodlander stated that the van requested to be surplused has been replaced and 
traditionally utilized by Special Needs Recreation (SNR).  The SNR group requested the City 
donate the van so they could utilize the proceeds toward their facility.  Recreation Director, Steve 
Anthony stated that SNR is one of the heartfelt programs in the City.  Originally, this program 
was funded 100% by the City.  In the 1980’s, due to budget cuts, the program was lost, but the 
need did not go away.  A group of parents came together and partnered with the City.  Thereafter 
they created a 501C3 and worked with United Way to provide recreation for mentally disabled 
citizens.  This program is shared with several other cities.  The City has won awards for working 
in partnerships to build this program.  Brent Albertson stated that he lived in California until 
December 2006, when his dad took a job with Cold Water Creek.  He worried about being in a 
small town and the lack of public transportation, and was pleasantly surprised.  He started 
participating in SNR; he made a lot friends, Annette Johnson who made him feel like he fit in 
and Missy, who he is now his fiancé.  He thanked SNR for providing him an opportunity to meet 
friends and a future wife.  He said that the City has donated two vans and has a little bus with 
wheelchair accessibility.  He stated that they do need more wheelchair accessibility and hoped 
the Council supports the request.   Mr. Anthony said that they have 600 adults and children that 
benefit from the program and any funds from the sale of the van would go back into the 
programs.  Councilman Goodlander clarified that the goal would be to donate the van and the 
SNR program would go about disposing of the van and putting the funds back into the programs.  
Councilman Gookin stated that history was not prepared for the Public Works Committee 
meeting and had a concern other agencies would come forward. He appreciated the explanation 
that it was a City program that was privatized and is very successful.  Mr. Anthony clarified that 
there are some federal regulations that regulate these programs. 
 

MOTION:  Motion by Goodlander, seconded by Edinger to adopt Resolution 13-028. 

ROLL CALL:  Gookin Aye; Edinger Aye; Adams Aye; McEvers Aye; Goodlander Aye. 

Motion carried. 
 



 

CC May 7, 2013 9 

2013 WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM MASTER PLAN UPDATE:  Wastewater 
Superintendent Sid Fredrickson introduced Steve James from JUB Engineers to provide a 
presentation of the plan.  Mr. James stated that this is the most exciting Master Plan he has been 
involved in during his career.  He presented the project objectives and findings to explain how 
they conducted the research and how to implement the plan.   They evaluated the existing 
collection systems, Maintenance and Operations, plant capacity, and sustainability.  The 
American Society of Civil Engineers rates most sewer collection systems an average grade of a 
“D,” on a scale of A-D, while the City of Coeur d’Alene was rated as a “B-,” which is 
tremendous to where most systems are today.   The existing system projects were prioritized by 
categories A through E.  Categories A-C needs more efforts.  Mr. James stated that 5% of the 
system is at the highest priority.  The budgeted replacement amounts were found to be in line 
with expected costs.  The biggest area of concern is the central business district and along the 
river.  Project sheets were created that explain what needs to happen, the costs, and the timeline 
for the improvements.  They were able to create asset management through GIS.  They then 
looked at the estimated future growth, including land within the area of city impact, with some 
areas left out due to septic and probability of development.  Mr. Fredrickson clarified that if 
growth patterns change it can be re-evaluated at that time.  Mr. James clarified that master 
planning includes variable elements, which include following recommendations within the plan, 
evaluating the redevelopment of areas with higher density, and periodically reviewing and 
assessing problem areas and continue to eliminate inflow sources.   
 
Councilman Gookin asked at what point in the process you would need to establish a special sur-
charge for new development.  Mr. Fredrickson stated that is a current concern and he would like 
to have that data in hand before the next annexation request comes forward.  He further stated 
that the City Council will need to consider remedies and expenses for storm water inflow issues 
in the future.    Mr. Fredrickson thanked Jim Remitz, Glenn Shute, and Larry Parson for 
providing assistance to the creation of the plan and JUB employees Levis Shulroy and Chris 
Web.    
 
MOTION:  Motion by Goodlander, seconded by Gookin to approve the 2013 Wastewater 
Collection System Master Plan Update.   Motion carried. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Motion by Goodlander, seconded by McEvers to enter into 
Executive Session as provided by Idaho Code 67-2345 Subsection F: To communicate with legal 
counsel for the public agency to discuss the legal ramifications of and legal options for pending 
litigation or controversies not yet being litigated but imminently likely to be litigated. The mere 
presence of legal counsel as executive session does not satisfy this requirement.  
 
ROLL CALL:  Edinger, Yes; Adams, Yes; McEvers, Yes; Goodlander, Yes; Gookin, Yes.  
Motion carried. 
 
The Council entered into Executive Session at 8:07 p.m.  Those present were the Mayor, City 
Council, City Administrator, Deputy City Administrator, and City Attorney.  Matters discussed 
were those of pending litigation.  No action was taken and the Council returned to regular session at 
8:15 p.m. 
 



 

CC May 7, 2013 10 

ADJOURNMENT:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Goodlander to recess to May 16, 2013, 
at 6:00 p.m. for a Council Workshop to discuss the Annual City Strategic Planning at the Library 
Community Room and then to May 20, 2013 at 12:00 Noon for a Council Workshop to discuss 
the Coeur d’Alene Lake Drive property transfer from ITD.  Motion carried. 
 
The meeting recessed at 8:15p.m. 
 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Sandi Bloem, Mayor 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
________________________ 
Renata McLeod,  
City Clerk  
 
 



Resolution No. 13‐029 1 | P a g e  

   

RESOLUTION NO. 13-029 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
IDAHO AUTHORIZING THE BELOW MENTIONED CONTRACTS AND OTHER 
ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE INCLUDING APPROVING AN 
ADDENDUM TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH SCHAFFER’S 
TOWING AND RECOVERY; AUTHORIZING THE REJECTION OF ATLAS WELL BID 
AND AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO NEGOTIATIONS WITH HOLT SERVICES 
INC.; AND APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH HDR ENGINEERING, INC. FOR WWTP PHASE 5C-1 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES. 
         

WHEREAS, it has been recommended that the City of Coeur d’Alene enter into the 
contract(s), agreement(s) or other actions listed below pursuant to the terms and conditions set 
forth in the contract(s), agreement(s) and other action(s) documents attached hereto as Exhibits 
“A through C” and by reference made a part hereof as summarized as follows: 

 
A) Approving an Addendum to the Professional Services Contract with Schaffer’s 

Towing and Recovery; 
 
B) Authorizing the Rejection of Atlas Well Bid and Authorization to Enter into 

Negotiations with Holt Services Inc.; 
 
C) Approving Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with HDR 

Engineering, Inc. for WWTP Phase 5C-1 Construction Administration Services; 
 
AND; 
 
WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 

citizens thereof to enter into such agreements or other actions; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the 
City enter into agreements or other actions for the subject matter, as set forth in substantially the 
form attached hereto as Exhibits "A through C" and incorporated herein by reference with the 
provision that the Mayor, City Administrator, and City Attorney are hereby authorized to modify 
said agreements or other actions so long as the substantive provisions of the agreements or other 
actions remain intact. 
 



Resolution No. 13‐029 2 | P a g e  

   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby 
authorized to execute such agreements or other actions on behalf of the City. 
 

DATED this 21st day of May, 2013.   
 
                                        
                                   Sandi Bloem, Mayor 
ATTEST 
 
 
      
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 
 
 
      
 
 Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
     ROLL CALL: 
 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER KENNEDY  Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER GOODLANDER Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 



GENERAL SERVICES COMMITTEE  
STAFF REPORT  

 
Date:   May 7, 2013 
 
From: Steve Childers  
 
Subject:  Request to extend contract – Single Source Towing contract with Schaffer’s 
Towing 
 
Decision Point:  Authorization to extend our contract for two more years with Schaffer’s 
Towing and Recovery as our single source-towing provider for the City of Coeur 
d’Alene.   
 
History:  Prior to August 2002, the City of Coeur d’Alene had employed a Rotational 
Tow Truck Policy to address the vehicle towing needs for the City.  However, during 
August 2002 the City of Coeur d’Alene changed their policy and a single source tow 
provider was selected. On average, the City of Coeur d’Alene dispatches approximately 
1100 vehicle tows per year ranging from vehicles involved in accidents to abandoned 
vehicles located on public and private property.  It has been determined that a single 
source tow provider is more economical and efficient for the City of Coeur d’Alene.  
 
Schaffer’s Towing and Recovery have met our requirements and are willing to provide 
our Agency and community with the same level of professionalism we have received for 
the past several years as our single source tow provider. Not only do they meet our 
requirements, they have provided a competitive towing fee scale that is both beneficial to 
the City as well as the motorist.  
  
Financial Analysis:  By continuing a single source towing provider, the City of Coeur 
d’Alene will realize cost savings by having more efficient response times to dispatched 
vehicle tows and will realize a cost savings with a reduction in staff time required to 
administer vehicle towing performed for the City of Coeur d’Alene.   
 
Performance Analysis:  A single source-towing provider will require less administration 
by City of Coeur d’Alene staff.  In addition, City Police will be required to spend less 
time at calls involving vehicle tows.   
 
Decision Point / Recommendation:  Authorize the contract extension with Schaffer’s 
Towing and Recovery as our single source-towing provider for the City of Coeur 
d’Alene.   



Resolution No. 13‐029 1 | P a g e   E X H I B I T   “ A ”  

Addendum to Schaffer’s Towing and Recovery contract 
 

 
WHEREAS, The above parties entered into a Professional Services Contract (“Contract”) 

on June 9th, 2009, adopted pursuant to Resolution No. 09-024, for a single source towing 
contract; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Contract was for a term of two (2) years, from June, 2009  through June, 
2011, with two (2) additional two-year options for renewal; and  

 
WHEREAS, The City of Coeur d’Alene (“City”) and Schaffer’s Towing and Recovery 

agree to the final two year extension. 
 
THEREFORE, the parties mutually agree to amend the Contract as follows: 
 

1.  Section 5.C: Storage Fees 
 
Tow Company agrees that it will charge no more than $35.00 per day vehicle storage fee. A day 
will be assessed every 24 hours commencing at 5 p.m. each day.  

 
No Further Modification of the Professional Service Contract: 
 
 The parties agree that the Contract between the parties, as herein extended, remains in 
full force and effect and that this Contract does not amend or alter any other right or obligation of 
either party under the Contract. 
   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Coeur d'Alene has caused this agreement to be 
executed by its Mayor and City Clerk, and the Owners have caused the same to be executed. 
 

DATED THIS 29th day of May, 2013. 
 
CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE   Schaffer’s Towing and Recovery, LLC    
 
 
 
By: _________________________    By: ________________________________  
   Sandi Bloem, Mayor               Terry Vulles, Manager     
    
ATTEST:        
 
 
_____________________________    
Renata McLeod, City Clerk      



Resolution No. 13‐029 2 | P a g e   E X H I B I T   “ A ”  

STATE OF IDAHO    ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
 On this ____ day of _____________, 2013, before me, a Notary Public, personally 
appeared Sandi Bloem and Renata McLeod, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, 
respectively, of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the persons who executed the foregoing 
instrument and acknowledged to me that said City of Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
                              ______________________________ 
                              Notary Public for Idaho 
                              Residing at Coeur d'Alene 
                              My Commission expires: 
 

********************* 
 
 
 
STATE OF IDAHO    ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
 On this ______ day of ____________, 2013, before me, a Notary Public, personally 
appeared Terry Vulles, known to me to be the Manager of Schaffer’s Towing & Recovery, 
LLC, and the person who executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said limited liability 
company and acknowledged to me that such limited liability company executed the same.  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
                              ________________________________ 
                              Notary Public for Idaho 
                              Residing at Coeur d'Alene 
                              My Commission expires: 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 13‐029 1 | P a g e   E X H I B I T   “ B ”  

 PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
 STAFF REPORT 
DATE: May 13, 2013  
FROM: Terry W. Pickel, Assistant Water Superintendent 
SUBJECT: Reject Atlas Well Bid, Authorization for Negotiation of Services. 
================================================================= 
DECISION POINT:  Staff requests that Council reject a non-responsive Atlas Well Bid and 
authorize staff to enter into negotiation with the contractor once a public works license has been 
acquired. 
  
 
HISTORY:  The Water Department is currently in the process of attempting to drill a new 
production well on property just north of Hanley Ave. and Atlas Rd. A test well has been drilled at 
this site and test pumped to ensure good water quality in preparation to drill the much larger 
production well. Welch Comer was the engineering firm selected to design the new source and 
oversee construction. Bids were let for drilling the first and second week of April with a bid opening 
date of April 24th. Despite aggressively seeking bids, only one bid was received from Holt Services, 
Inc. Unfortunately, the sole bidder did not have a current public works contractor’s license in Idaho 
at the time of the bid opening which by Idaho Code disqualifies them from bidding.    
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:  The Water Department received one bid in the sum of $223,760.00 
from Holt Services, Inc. The engineer’s estimate was $228,000.00. As previously mentioned, the 
sole bidder did not have a current public works contractor’s license for the state of Idaho at the time 
of the bid resulting in a non-responsive bid submittal. This being the case, no qualified bids were 
received. 
 
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS:   In checking with our Legal Department, staff was provided with 
the following information. Idaho Code 67-2805(3)(a) provides that bidding on public works 
contracts is only open to licensed public works contractors. Therefore the contract cannot be 
awarded and the bid must be rejected by the Council. However, Idaho Code 67-2805(3)(a)(viii) 
provides, when no qualified bids are received, the city can proceed with the work without further 
competitive bidding. In short, once the bid is rejected, Council can then authorize staff to enter into 
negotiations with the contractor to award them the work once the contractor is properly licensed. 
Welch Comer has been in contact with the contractor and they are willing to hold the same price for 
negotiation. They are currently working on acquiring their Idaho Public Works Contractor’s License. 
  
 
 
DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION:   Staff requests that the Council reject the sole non-
responsive bid of $223,760.00 for the drilling of Atlas Well from Holt Services, Inc. and authorize 
staff to enter into negotiations for an agreement with Holt Services, Inc. once they have acquired 
their public works contractor’s license. 



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

DATE:  May 13, 2013 
 
FROM:  James Remitz, Capital Program Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment No. 1 Revised to the July 19, 2011 Professional 
Services Agreement between the City of Coeur d’Alene and HDR Engineering, 
Inc. for Construction Administration Services for WWTP Phase 5C.1. 
 

 
DECISION POINT:  The City Council may desire to approve the proposed 
Amendment No.1 Revised to the July 19, 2011 Agreement between the City of 
Coeur d’Alene and HDR Engineering, Inc. (City of Coeur d’Alene Professional 
Services Agreement Resolution No. 11-024) and authorize the Mayor to execute 
this Amendment.  Amendment No. 1 Revised which will provide construction 
administration services during the construction of WWTP Phase 5C.1; Initial 
Tertiary Filtration / Nitrification Improvements.  A copy of the proposed 
amendment with Exhibit A, Scope of Services and Exhibit B, Compensation 
Schedule are included for your review. 
 
HISTORY:  The City of Coeur d’Alene Wastewater Department, in an effort to 
meet US EPA regulatory permit requirements, desires to construct the first full 
scale increment of low phosphorus improvements with Phase 5C.1 Initial Tertiary 
Membrane Filtration / Nitrification Improvements.  The project improvements 
include construction of a new building, covered concrete tanks, procurement and 
installation of the tertiary membrane filters, construction of a new secondary 
effluent pump station, secondary aeration improvements, site improvements and 
associated pumps, piping and equipment.  This revised amendment replaces the 
previously approved Amendment No. 1 (July 3, 2012) for additional professional 
services for the design of secondary aeration improvements that due to 
wastewater budget concerns at the time, was never executed.  Amendment No. 
1 Revised includes the design of the secondary aeration improvements and the 
construction administration for these improvements as part of Phase 5C.1 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
Planning and Design Engineering Services   $    973,555 
(per July 19, 2011 Agreement) 
 
Amendment No. 1 Revised    $ 1,243,098 
(Proposed) 
    Total   $ 2,216,653 
 



Funding for this Amendment No. 1 Revised is budgeted in the current FY 
2102/2013 Wastewater Budget in account # 031-052-4954-7930 - 5C.1 Tertiary 
Treatment (Year 1 of 2). 
 
         
RECOMMENDATION: Wastewater staff recommends approval of Amendment 
No. 1 Revised to the July 19, 2011 Professional Services Agreement between 
the City of Coeur d’Alene and HDR Engineering, Inc., for  construction 
administration services in the amount of $ 1,243,098. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
 Exhibit A – Scope of Services 
 Exhibit B – Compensation Schedule 
 
  
 



Resolution No. 13-029 Exhibit C 
Phase 5C.1 Initial TMF / Nitrification Improvement 
Amendment No. 1 Revised Page 1  Scope of Services – Attachment “A” 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 REVISED 
 

to 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

between 
 

CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE 
 

and   
 

HDR ENGINEERING, INC. 
 

for 
 

PHASE 5C.1 INITIAL TERTIARY MEMBRANE FILTRATION (TMF) / 
NITRIFICATION IMPROVEMENTS 

 
The agreement, made and entered into the 19th day of July, 2011, between the CITY, City 

of Coeur d’Alene and the CONSULTANT, HDR Engineering, Inc. is hereby amended on the 
21st day of May, 2013 as set forth herein. 

 
 W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
WHEREAS, the City faces changing effluent discharge conditions in the Spokane River 

as a result of water quality studies conducted by the Washington State Department of Ecology 
and renewal of the City’s effluent discharge permit by Region 10 of the Environmental 
Protection Agency; 

 
WHEREAS, the City has undertaken an analysis of the implications of these regulatory 

actions in preparation of an “Update to the Wastewater Facility Plan Amendment”; 
 
WHEREAS, the Phase 5 improvements will complete plant expansion to 6 mgd average 

daily capacity while preparing for future low effluent phosphorus concentrations; 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to design and construct the first full scale increment of low 

phosphorus improvements (Phase 5C.1 Initial TMF/Nitrification Improvements) to be required 
in upcoming permit renewals; 

 
 



Resolution No. 13-029 Exhibit C 
Phase 5C.1 Initial TMF / Nitrification Improvement 
Amendment No. 1 Revised Page 2  Scope of Services – Attachment “A” 

WHEREAS, the Consultant is completing the design of the Phase 5C.1 Initial 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements; 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to advertise for and award a construction contract to a 

General Contractor to construct the Phase 5C.1 Initial TMF/Nitrification Improvements; 
 
WHEREAS, Consultant is available and is willing to provide personnel and services to 

accomplish the work according to the City’s schedule. 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement contains provisions in Section 10, for the City to authorize 

extra services in connection with this project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has agreed to have the Consultant provide the extra services as 

described in Attachment “A” Scope of Services;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions and covenants of 

performance contained or incorporated herein, the City and the Consultant agree that the 
agreement entered into the 19th day of July, 2011, shall be amended as follows: 

 
Section 1.  Scope of Services 
 
The scope of services is amended to revise the project budget to provide the city with 

additional design services as well as office support and on-site observation during construction.  
The following work tasks are to be performed in accordance with the scope of work in 
Attachment “A”: 

 Task 700 - Secondary Improvements  
 Task 800 - Construction Administration  
 Task 900 - Construction Engineering 
 Task 1000 - Field Services 
 Task 1100 - Application Software Programming Services 
 Task 1200 - Systems Commissioning 
 Task 1300 - Project Close-out 
 Task 1400 - Additional Unanticipated, Urgent, or Special Services 
 
Section 2.  Compensation 
 
For services described in this Amendment, payment shall be made on the same basis as in 

the original Agreement.  Labor Costs shall be amended to an amount equal to the Direct Labor 
Cost times a factor of 2.75.  Direct Labor Costs used as a basis for payment shall be updated to 
current salary and wages paid to all Consultant’s personnel engaged directly on the Project, 
including, but not limited to, engineers, architects, surveyors, designers, drafting personnel, 



Resolution No. 13-029 Exhibit C 
Phase 5C.1 Initial TMF / Nitrification Improvement 
Amendment No. 1 Revised Page 3  Scope of Services – Attachment “A” 

specification writers, estimators, and other technical and business personnel; but does not include 
indirect payroll-related costs or fringe benefits.  

 
The City shall pay Consultant’s direct expenses incurred in providing services, including 

the cost of sub consultants, on the same basis as in the original Agreement. 
 
The additional Fixed Fee for services in Amendment No. 1 Revised shall be $94,115 and 

the amended Total Fixed Fee shall be $180,761. 
 
The City’s total consideration for services in Amendment No. 1 Revised, including labor 

costs, direct expenses and fixed fee, shall be $1,243,098 and the total Agreement shall be 
amended not to exceed $2,216,653. 
 

Section 3.  Schedule 

Schedule for completion shall be amended according to the schedule presented in 
Attachment “A”. 

 
CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE   HDR ENGINEERING, INC. 
 
 
             
Sandi Bloem, Mayor     Karen M Doherty, Vice President 
 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
              
Renata McLeod, City Clerk    Zelma Z. Miller, Department Accountant 
 

 
 
 
 

[Notary page follows on next page] 
  



Resolution No. 13-029 Exhibit C 
Phase 5C.1 Initial TMF / Nitrification Improvement 
Amendment No. 1 Revised Page 4  Scope of Services – Attachment “A” 

STATE OF IDAHO   ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this ___day of May, 2013, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Sandi 
Bloem and Renata McLeod, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the 
City of Coeur d'Alene that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that said 
City of Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
                                     
                              Notary Public for Idaho 
                              Residing at      
                              My Commission expires:     
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of ADA ) 
 
      On this ____ day of May, 2013, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Karen 
M. Doherty, known to me to be the Vice President, of HDR ENGINEERING, INC., and the 
persons who executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said corporation, and acknowledged 
to me that such corporation executed the same. 
 
      IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
                                     
                              Notary Public for Idaho 
                              Residing at Boise, ID 
                              My Commission Expires: 03/13/2015 
 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 1  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 REVISED 
(Replaces previously approved Amendment No. 1) 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
PHASE 5C.1 INITIAL TERTIARY MEMBRANE FILTRATION (TMF) / NITRIFICATION 

IMPROVEMENTS 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES, SCHEDULE, AND COMPENSATION 
FOR 

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION 
 

INTRODUCTION 
Professional Consulting Services for the Construction Administration of the Phase 5C.1 Initial 
Tertiary Membrane Filtration and Nitrification Improvements (Phase 5C.1) project is described 
in this exhibit and it is amended to the original Agreement (City of Coeur d’Alene Professional 
Services Agreement Resolution No. 11-024) entered into on July 19, 2011.  This supplement also 
extends the contract completion date to May 30, 2014. Tasks included in this Contract 
amendment include the following and are described in more detail below: 
 

 Task 700 - Secondary Improvements  
 Task 800 - Construction Administration  
 Task 900 - Construction Engineering 
 Task 1000 - Field Services 
 Task 1100 - Application Software Programming Services 
 Task 1200 - Systems Commissioning 
 Task 1300 - Project Close-out 
 Task 1400 - Additional Unanticipated, Urgent, or Special Services 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Task 700 - Secondary Improvements 

Sub-task 701 - Detailed Design for Secondary Aeration Improvements  
Objective 
Provide plans and specifications for improvements to the secondary aeration system, including 
air scour for the integrated fixed-film activated sludge modules. 
 
Approach 

 Coordinate with high speed turbo blower approved manufacturers to select equipment 
and obtain details. 

 Prepare detailed plans and specifications that define the size, configuration, process 
control and key features of the project components.  

o A preliminary drawing list includes: 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 2  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 General 
 000G06 - Site Plan, Staging Areas and Survey Control (modified) 
 000G07 - Process Design Criteria (modified) 

 Civil 
 000C01 - Existing Yard Piping and Demolition Plan (modified) 
 000C02 - Yard Piping Plan (modified) 
 000C03 - Enlarged Yard Piping Plan (modified) 
 000C06 - Finish Contours, Paving and Grading Plan (modified) 

 Process 
 501D02 Secondary Control Building - Aeration Air Piping 

Demolition Plan (new) 
 501D03 - Secondary Control Building - Aeration Air Piping Plan 

and Section (new) 
 501D04 - Secondary Control Building - Aeration Air Sections and 

Details (new) 
 550D01 - Solids Contact/Sludge Reaeration Tanks - Aeration Air 

Piping Plan and Details (new) 
 Mechanical 

 501M01 - Aeration Blower Cooling System Plan and Section 
(new) 

 Electrical 
 000E15 - Electrical Distribution One-line Diagram Upgrade 

(modified) 
 501E01 - Secondary Control Building - Control Plan and Details 

(modified) 
 501E02 - Secondary Control Building - Photo Details and Panel 

Schedule (modified) 
 501E03 - Secondary Control Building - Power Plan and Details 

(new) 
 550E01 - Solids Contact/Sludge Reaeration Tanks - Power and 

Control Plan (new) 
 Instrumentation 

 000Y02 - PLC I/O Lists (modified) 
 000Y19 - Process and Instrumentation Diagram - Secondary 

Aeration (new) 
o A preliminary specification list includes: 

 Section 00300 - Bid Form (modified) 
 Section 01010 - Summary of Work (modified) 
 Section 01014 - Work Sequence (modified) 
 Section 01650 - Facility Start-up (modified) 
 Section 11081 - High Speed Turbo Aeration Blower (modified) 
 Section 13441 - Control Loop Descriptions (modified) 
 Section 13442 - Primary Elements and Transmitters (modified) 
 Section 15060 - Pipe and Pipe Fittings: Basic Requirements (modified) 
 Section 15605 - HVAC: Equipment (modified) 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 3  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Secondary aeration improvements will be incorporated into the Phase 5C.1 Initial 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements bid documents via addenda as a stand-alone bid item. 

 Detailed design will include draft submittal to the City for review and comment, and a 
final submittal to Idaho DEQ for review and approval and to the City for incorporation 
into the bidding documents. 

 Provide technical quality control review by HDR senior design staff. 

 Provide opinion of probable construction cost for improvements. 

 Conduct up to one (1) review meeting with City staff and up to two (2) Consultant staff 
members to discuss City comments on draft submittal. 

 
Assumptions 

 Improvements will not require a preliminary engineering report but will require a plan 
and specification review by Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ). 

 Drawings will be prepared per industry standards and specifications will be prepared 
using the sixteen-division format of the Construction Specifications Institute.   

 The design will incorporate City and Consultant engineering and equipment standards to 
maintain consistency and compatibility with the City’s facilities.   

 Final  

 Up to ten (10) drawings will be modified and up to eight (8) new drawings will be 
prepared for the Secondary Aeration Improvements.   

 Up to nine (9) specification sections will be modified for the Secondary Aeration 
Improvements. 

 City will assist with establishing final design criteria. 

 City will perform a timely review of draft submittal and provide a single set of reconciled 
review comments. 

 City will participate in review meeting. 

 Final opinion of probable construction cost will be for continued cost baseline 
monitoring. Consultant will attempt to provide a range of accuracy based upon AACE 
International Recommended Practice No. 17R-97, Class 1, 70 to 100 percent project 
definition,+10% to -5% Range of Accuracy). 

 
Deliverables 

 Draft design drawings and specifications transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Final design drawings and specification transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Opinion of probable construction cost transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

Sub-task 702 - Detailed Design for Tank Drain and Scum Pumping Station 
Improvements  
Objective 
Provide plans and specifications for improvements to the tank drain and scum pumping station. 
 
Approach 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 4  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Prepare detailed plans and specifications that define the size, configuration, process 
control and key features of the project components.  

o A preliminary drawing list includes: 
 General 

 000G06 - Site Plan, Staging Areas and Survey Control (modified) 
 000G07 - Process Design Criteria (modified) 
 000G08 - Process Flow Diagram I (modified) 
 000G09 - Process Flow Diagram II (modified) 

 Civil 
 000C01 - Existing Yard Piping and Demolition Plan (modified) 
 000C02 - Yard Piping Plan (modified) 
 000C05 - Yard Piping Sections and Details (modified) 
 000C06 - Finish Contours, Paving and Grading Plan (modified) 
 000C08 - Enlarged Yard Piping Plan (new).  

 Process 
 501D05 - Secondary Control Building & Clarifiers - Tank Drain 

and Scum Pumping Station Plan and Sections (new) 
 Electrical 

 501E04 - Secondary Control Building & Clarifiers - Tank Drain 
and Scum Pumping Station Power and Control Plan (new) 

 Instrumentation 
 000Y20 - Process and Instrumentation Diagram - Tank Drain and 

Scum Pumping Station (new) 
o A preliminary specification list includes: 

 Section 00300 - Bid Form (modified) 
 Section 01010 - Summary of Work (modified) 
 Section 01014 - Work Sequence (modified) 
 Section 01650 - Facility Start-up (modified) 
 Section 11076 - Pumping Equipment: Submersible Non-Clog (modified) 
 Section 13441 - Control Loop Descriptions (modified) 
 Section 13442 - Primary Elements and Transmitters (modified) 
 Section 15060 - Pipe and Pipe Fittings: Basic Requirements (modified) 

 Tank Drain and Scum Pumping Station Improvements will be incorporated into the Phase 
5C.1 Initial TMF/Nitrification Improvements bid documents via addenda as a stand-alone 
bid item. 

 Detailed design will include draft submittal to the City for review and comment and a 
final submittal to Idaho DEQ for review and approval and to the City for incorporation 
into the bidding documents. 

 Provide technical quality control review by HDR senior design staff. 

 Provide opinion of probable construction cost for improvements. 

 Conduct up to one (1) review meeting with City staff and up to two (2) Consultant staff 
members to discuss City comments on draft submittal. 

 
Assumptions 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 5  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Improvements will not require a preliminary engineering report but will require a plan 
and specification review by Idaho DEQ. 

 Drawings will be prepared per industry standards and specifications will be prepared 
using the sixteen-division format of the Construction Specifications Institute.   

 The design will incorporate City and Consultant engineering and equipment standards to 
maintain consistency and compatibility with the City’s facilities.   

 Up to eight (8) drawings will be modified and up to four (4) new drawings will be 
prepared for Tank Drain and Scum Pumping Station Improvements.   

 Up to eight (8) specification sections will be modified for the Tank Drain and Scum 
Pumping Station Improvements. 

 City will assist with establishing final design criteria. 

 City will perform a timely review of draft submittal and provide a single set of reconciled 
review comments. 

 City will participate in review meeting. 

 Final opinion of probable construction cost will be for continued cost baseline 
monitoring. Consultant will attempt to provide a range of accuracy based upon AACE 
International Recommended Practice No. 17R-97, Class 1, 70 to 100 percent project 
definition,+10% to -5% Range of Accuracy). 

 
Deliverables 

 Draft design drawings and specifications transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Final design drawings and specification transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Opinion of probable construction cost transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 

Task 800 - Construction Administration 
Assist City in administering the construction of the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Phase 
5C.1 Initial TMF and Nitrification Improvements (Phase 5C.1) project. 
 

Sub-task 801 - Project Management 
Objective 
Provide scope, schedule, and cost control services of Consultant’s contract during the 
construction phase of the project. 
 
Approach 

 Communicate scope, schedule, and budget status with City and the project team through 
project management plan, telephone calls, and e-mail communications.   

 Monitor project progress including work completed, work remaining, budget expended, 
schedule, estimated cost of work remaining, and estimated cost at completion. 

 Prepare and submit monthly progress reports and invoices to City. The monthly progress 
report will include work performed within invoiced period, tracking of Consultant 
contract changes and the cumulative effect of changes on Consultant contract budget. 

 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 6  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

Assumptions 
 This task is for the management of Consultant’s contract.  
 This Scope of Services assumes a single construction contract will be executed for the 

Phase 5C.1 project. 
 Consultant will manage Consultant staff and sub-consultants. 
 Costs for this contract will be tracked at the task level. 
 Budget may be transferred between tasks and from sub-consultant to Consultant without 

an amendment to the Agreement, unless such transfers also require a change in total fee. 
 Consultant will proportionately adjust loaded labor rates to actual salary and wage 

increases for individuals. 
 Invoice and progress report format will follow Consultant standard format. 
 Up to twelve (12) invoices and progress reports will be submitted to City. 
 Direct expenses for travel, subsistence, printing, photocopying, technology, and 

telephone conferences will be billed to City. 
 
Deliverables 

 Monthly progress reports and invoices transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 

Sub-task 802 - Quality Assurance and Quality Control 
Objective 
Verify that services conform to generally accepted standard of care, i.e., the care and skill 
ordinarily used by members of the subject profession practicing under similar circumstances at 
the same time and in the same locality, and meet Consultant’s expectations for quality. 
 
Approach 

 Conduct a project approach and resource review (PARR) with Consultant’s senior design 
and construction personnel. This review will serve as a verification of the procedures and 
practices being used by the construction administration team.   

 Conduct up to four (4) management review meetings with City. 
 Develop agendas and notes for each review meeting.   

 
Assumptions 

 PARR will occur in Consultant’s Coeur d’Alene office, will involve up to five (5) 
Consultant construction administration staff, and will last up to eight (8) hours.   

 Management review meetings will occur in City’s Wastewater Administration Building 
conference room, will involve up to four (4) Consultant construction administration staff, 
and will last up to eight (8) hours each. 

 Direct expenses for travel, subsistence, printing, photocopying, technology, and 
telephone conferences will be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 PARR form transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format, if requested. 
 Agenda and notes for each management review meeting transmitted to City via e-mail in 

.pdf format. 
 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 7  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

Sub-task 803 - Safety Plan 
Objective 
Provide a safety plan for Consultant staff during the administration of the construction project. 
 
Approach 

 Consultant will develop a Safety and Health Plan for Consultant staff. 
 
Assumptions 

 City and Contractor are completely responsible for safety on this project, including the 
safety of City personnel and the public. 

 Consultant shall not be responsible for the health and safety of City or Contractor, their 
employees, subcontractors, or agents on site or in any way arising from the work on this 
project. 

 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, and technology will be billed to City. 
 
Deliverables 

 Consultant Safety and Health Plan transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format, if 
requested. 

 

Sub-task 804 - Document Management System  
Objective 
Maintain an electronic Document Management System (DMS) for managing project electronic 
files. 
 
Approach 

 Maintain electronic files in the DMS, including but not limited to shop drawing 
transmittals, requests for information, change proposal requests, change orders, field 
reports of project activities, digital photographs, audio recordings of meetings and 
conferences, material testing logs, work deficiency checklists, contractor payment 
certifications and correspondence between Consultant, Contractor, utility 
companies/agencies, other parties, and City. 

 Provide logs for shop drawing transmittals, requests for information, field orders, change 
proposal requests, change orders, and work deficiency lists to City and Contractor on a 
weekly basis. 

 Coordinate logs once per month with Contractor and resolve discrepancies. 
 
Assumptions 

 Consultant will use Consultant’s Project Tracker and Bentley ProjectWise for the DMS. 
 Consultant will not maintain a hard copy of documentation in addition to the DMS.  
 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone conferences will 

be billed to City. 
 
Deliverables 

 Filing system index transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 8  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Weekly tracking logs for shop drawing transmittals, requests for information, field 
orders, change proposal requests, change orders, and work deficiency checklists 
transmitted to City and Contractor via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 

Task 900 - Construction Engineering 

Sub-task 901 - Pre-construction Conference 
Objective 
Conduct a pre-construction conference to establish basic project protocols and procedures. 
 
Approach 

 Identify with City and Contractor the parties to be included in the conference. 
 Notify parties as to the time and place of the meeting. Include in the notification a 

preliminary agenda for comment and identification of specific items they may want 
addressed during the conference. 

 Distribute final agenda and provide hard copies for participants.  
 Conduct the pre-construction conference, including site walk, with City, construction 

contractor and their sub-contractors and suppliers, agency officials, and Consultant 
construction administration team. 

 Distribute meeting notes to persons in attendance, parties notified of conference but not 
in attendance, and the DMS. 

 
Assumptions 

 Pre-construction conference will occur in City’s Wastewater Administration Building 
conference room, will involve up to four (4) Consultant team members, and will last up 
to four (4) hours. 

 Up to ten (10) hard copies of conference agenda will be furnished by Consultant. 
 Conference audio will be digitally recorded and filed in the DMS. 
 Direct expenses for travel, subsistence, printing, photocopying, technology, and 

telephone conferences will be billed to City. 
 
Deliverables 

 Draft conference agenda transmitted to City and Contractor via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 Final conference agenda transmitted to City and Contractor via e-mail in .pdf format and 

up to ten (10) hard copies delivered at conference. 
 Meeting notes transmitted to City and Contractor via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 

Sub-task 902 - City Coordination Meetings 
Objective 
Conduct meetings with City to discuss project progress and City concerns. 
 
Approach 

 Utilize draft agendas for the construction progress meetings as the agenda for City 
coordination meetings. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 9  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Conduct coordination meetings every other week with City to review progress, issues, 
and concerns prior to construction progress meetings. 

 Additional participants in the meeting may include utility agencies and companies, and/or 
permitting agencies depending upon what is being discussed. 

 Meeting notes may be incorporated into the final agenda for the construction progress 
meetings (see Sub-task 903 - Construction Progress Meetings).  

 
Assumptions 

 Coordination meetings will occur in City’s Wastewater Administration Building 
conference room and via conference call for those team members not in physical 
attendance, will involve up to three (3) Consultant construction administration team 
members, and will last up to one (1) hour each. 

 Meeting notes will not be issued separately for these coordination meetings. 
 Up to twenty (20) coordination meetings are included in this sub-task. 
 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone conferences will 

be billed to City. 
 
Deliverables 

 Meeting agenda transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 

Sub-task 903 - Construction Progress Meetings 
Objective 
Conduct meetings with City and Contractor to discuss project progress. 
 
Approach 

 Prepare an agenda for the construction progress meetings incorporating City topics (see 
Sub-task 902 - City Coordination Meetings) and known issues. Other agenda items will 
include, but will not limited to, project progress and schedule updates, review of shop 
drawing submittal and requests for information responses, review of known project 
issues, scheduled City training sessions, start-up and commissioning activities. 

 Additional participants in the meeting may include utility agencies and companies, and/or 
permitting agencies depending upon what is being discussed. 

 Distribute meeting notes to persons in attendance, parties notified of meetings but not in 
attendance, and the DMS. 

 
Assumptions 

 Consultant will prepare an agenda for the first construction progress meeting.  Notes from 
the first meeting will be used as the agenda for subsequent meetings updated with current 
issues or concerns. 

 Agendas will include current logs of outstanding shop drawing submittal and requests for 
information responses. 

 Up to ten (10) hard copies of meeting agendas, including logs, will be furnished by 
Consultant. 

 Meeting audio will be digitally recorded and filed in the DMS. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 10  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Construction progress meetings will occur in City’s Wastewater Administration Building 
conference room and via conference call for those team members not in physical 
attendance, will involve up to three (3) Consultant construction administration team 
members as appropriate, and will last up to two (2) hours each. 

 Up to twenty (20) coordination meetings are included in this sub-task. 
 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone conferences will 

be billed to City. 
 
Deliverables 

 Meeting agendas transmitted to City and Contractor via e-mail in .pdf format prior to 
progress meetings and up to ten (10) hard copies delivered at meetings. 

 Meeting notes transmitted to City and Contractor via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 

Sub-task 904 - Contractors’ Payment Administration 
Objective  
Coordinate timely and equitable payment to Contractor in accordance with Contract provisions 
 
Approach 

 Review and approval of Schedule of Values: 
o Review Contractor's Schedule of Values (cost breakdown) by comparison to 

Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost to establish a reasonably 
balanced distribution of costs to the various elements of the total construction to 
serve as a basis for progress payments and determination of cost impact of 
changes. 

o Transmit comments to City and Contractor. 
o Meet with City and Contractor to reconcile disputed areas of apparent unbalanced 

costs and document reconciliation of disputed items. 
o Notify Contractor with letter of acceptance after reconciliation of costs 

 Review Contractor’s Applications for Payment 
o Review draft application for payment in comparison to progress of the work.  

Make notations of:   deficient work not recommended for payment until corrected; 
deletion of payment for stored materials and/or equipment which do not have 
approved shop drawings and/or proper invoices; reduction of value for partially 
completed items claimed as complete. 

o Conduct review of storage areas and verify existence of invoiced 
materials/equipment and proper storage. 

o Return a copy of the reviewed draft application to Contractor. 
o Meet with Contractor to reconcile discrepancies. 
o Review revised application for payment and, if acceptable, advise Contractor to 

submit the required number of copies. 
 Process Payment Application: 

o Execute completed application for payment indicating amount recommended for 
payment and transmit to City for processing of payment. 

o Monitor total payments to adjust retainage amounts as specified in the Contract 
Documents. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 11  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

o At substantial completion, and at City's direction, adjust retainage from fixed 
percent to only enough retainage to provide for work completion.  

 
Assumptions 

 The draft and final payment application requests will be submitted by Contractor each 
month on days agreed upon to meet City’s processing schedule requirements. 

 Consultant’s recommendations for payment can be modified until final payment is 
approved and authorized by City. 

 City is responsible for approving and authorizing payment submittals.    
 Up to eight (8) payment applications will be reviewed by Consultant. 
 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone conferences will 

be billed to City. 
 
Deliverables 

 Written comments on Schedule of Values transmitted to City and Contractor via e-mail in 
.pdf format. 

 Documentation of reconciliation of disputed items in Schedule of Values transmitted to 
City and Contractor via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Contractor’s Payment Application Requests transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format 
with appropriate attachments. 

 

Sub-task 905 - Shop Drawing Submittal Review and Tracking 
Objective 
Facilitate the achievement of substantial conformance to the design intent through technical 
review by Designers or Engineer of Record of Contractor’s shop drawings.   
 
Approach 

 Review Shop Drawing Submittal Schedule, including: 
o Review Contractor's Shop Drawing Submittal Schedule to ascertain that 

significant submittals are accounted for, that submittals are coordinated with the 
sequence of construction activities relying on them, that adequate and reasonable 
turn-around times for review are provided for, and that all shop drawings can be 
submitted and approved prior to 50 percent completion of the construction. 

o Notify Contractor with either letter of acceptance or a letter of rejection noting 
deficiencies and requesting correction of them and re-submittal. 

o Distribute copies of approved shop drawing submittal schedule to City and design 
team members responsible for shop drawing reviews. 

 Administer shop drawing and other submittal requirements to effect substantial 
compliance with the intent of the Contract requirements, including: 

o Receive, log, and maintain shop drawing submittal documents in the DMS. 
o Conduct review of shop drawing submittals to confirm Contractor's compliance 

with administrative requirements and distribute to appropriate design team 
member(s) for review. 

o Review submittals for compliance with the specifications and provide written 
comments to Contractor.  



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 12  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

o Receive and collate comments on submittal reviews performed by others, 
including City. 

o Establish organized storage for samples and a tracking log for samples. 
 Review Shop Drawing Schedule status, including: 

o Review weekly the approved submittal schedule and the actual shop drawing log 
for comparison. 

o Review shop drawing submittal log in regard to requirements that all shop 
drawings must be submitted and approved prior to 50 percent completion. 

o Provide written reminders or notice to Contractor whenever a submittal is 
overdue. 

o Address general status of shop drawings at construction progress meetings. 
o Utilize shop drawing submittal schedule as a checklist item for application for 

payment. 
Assumptions 

 Contractor will prepare a listing of submittals and dates of expected submittal, 
coordinated with supply contract schedules to allow adequate time for review, resubmittal 
and review to meet the construction schedule. If Contractor fails to provide the submittal 
schedule and/or does not provide documents in accordance with the schedule, Consultant 
may be provided with additional time to review the submittal. 

 Consultant will not review and comment on submittals related to temporary items and 
construction aides such as shoring and formwork. Receipt of these submittals are to 
confirm compliance with the contract requirements for submittal only and Consultant will 
not review for the content, compliance, calculations, etc. Consultant is not responsible for 
the content of the submittal. 

 Consultant has not included staff or sub-consultants to review geotechnical and 
hazardous material issues that arise during construction other than the materials testing 
described in Sub-task 1002 - Materials Testing and Special Inspection.   

 Consultant will use its standard Construction Contract Administration forms for shop 
drawing process. 

 Reviews of requests for substitution are not included in this scope. If submitted by 
Contractor, the request will be sent to City for approval to proceed with review. 
Consultant time to process, review, and respond to request will be billed to City as a 
separate, out-of-scope activity. 

 The fee for this sub-task is based upon receiving and reviewing three hundred seventy 
(370) submittals and one hundred twenty (120) re-submittals. Actual review time may 
vary depending upon the complexity and quality of the submittals. On average, it is 
estimated that each submittal will take 3 hours of construction administration team 
member time to review and process and each re-submittal will take 1.5 hours of 
construction administration team members’ time to review and process. If Contractor 
submittals are incomplete or take longer to review than anticipated for reasons beyond 
the control of Consultant, City will increase the fee for this activity as a separate, 
additional fee activity which City could recover from Contractor through a construction 
contract change when appropriate. 

 Submittal reviews following one (1) re-submittal will be billed to City as a separate, out-
of-scope activity from which City can, at its discretion, deduct the amount from 
Contractor’s payment application(s). 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 13  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone conferences will 
be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 Contractor’s approved Shop Drawing Submittal Schedule transmitted to City and design 
team members via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Assembled comment sheets in each submittal file in the DMS. 
 Shop drawing responses transmitted to Contractor and City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 

Sub-task 906 - Request for Information Review and Tracking 
Objective 
Facilitate timely responses to requests for information (RFIs) to provide Contractor with clear 
and certain direction for the efficient execution of the Work. 
 
Approach 

 Receive, log, and maintain RFI documents in the DMS. 
 Distribute RFIs to appropriate design team members for review. 
 Provide draft RFI responses to City for review, unless directed otherwise by City. 
 Return final RFI responses to Contractor with copies to City and appropriate design team 

members. 
 If the response to an RFI results in a change, then Consultant will prepare and issue field 

orders or change proposal requests, as appropriate. 
 
Assumptions 

 Consultant review of RFIs regarding the design will be advisory and complementary to 
the design intent.  

 Consultant will use its standard Construction Contract Administration forms for 
documenting contract interpretations. 

 The fee for this sub-task is based upon receiving and responding to one hundred fifty 
(150) RFIs. Actual response time may vary depending upon clarity and complexity of the 
RFI. On average, it is estimated that it will take 2.25 hours of construction administration 
team member time to review and respond to each RFI. If Contractor RFIs are incomplete 
or take longer to respond to than anticipated for reasons beyond the control of Consultant, 
City will increase the fee for this activity as a separate, additional fee activity which City 
could recover from Contractor through a construction contract change when appropriate. 

 Additional time required for excessive RFIs will be billed to City as a separate, additional 
fee activity. 

 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone conferences will 
be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 Response supporting information filed in the DMS. 
 Draft RFI responses transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 Final RFI responses transmitted to Contractor, City, and Consultant’s construction 

administration team members via e-mail in .pdf format. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 14  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 

Sub-task 907 - Field Orders and Tracking 
Objective 
Provide coordination and review to identify the need for minor changes in the Work consistent 
with the design intent, and issue Field Orders (FOs) to communicate the details of the minor 
changes involving no change in Contract Time or Contract Price. 
 
Approach 

 Assemble documentation from the Contract Documents and/or field conditions related to 
the proposed minor change and furnish to the designer for evaluation of conformance 
with the design intent. 

 Coordinate the preparation of technical descriptions of FOs and provide draft FO to City 
for review, unless directed otherwise by City. 

o If FO is the result of a response to a RFI, the draft FO will be included when the 
draft RFI response is sent to City for review. 

 Issue final FO to Contractor with copies to City and appropriate design team members. 
 Log FOs, including supporting information and City comments, in the DMS. 
 Obtain from Contractor signed copies acknowledging Contractor’s receipt of the FO and 

route copies to the appropriate project files. 
 
Assumptions 

 Field Orders may be generated from responses to RFIs, design changes, Contractor 
initiated changes, Owner initiated changes, or unanticipated conditions. 

 Consultant will use its standard Construction Contract Administration forms for 
documenting contract modification activities. 

 The fee for this sub-task is based upon preparing and processing fifty (50) FOs. Actual 
preparation and processing time may vary depending upon the complexity of the FO. On 
average, it is estimated that it will take 1.5 hours of project team time to prepare and 
process each FO. If FOs take longer to prepare and process than anticipated for reasons 
beyond the control of Consultant, City will increase the fee for this activity as a separate, 
additional fee activity which City could recover from Contractor through a construction 
contract change when appropriate. 

 Additional time required for excessive FOs will be billed to City as a separate, additional 
fee activity. 

 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone conferences will 
be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 Supporting information filed in the DMS. 
 Draft FOs transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 Final FOs transmitted to Contractor, City, and Consultant’s construction administration 

team members via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 15  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

Sub-task 908 - Change Proposal Requests and Tracking 
Objective 
Provide coordination and review to identify needed changes in the Work consistent with the 
design intent that involve changes in contract price and/or time, and issue Change Proposal 
Requests (CPRs) to communicate the details of the changes and request pricing from Contractor. 
 
Approach 

 Assemble documentation from the Contract Documents and/or field conditions related to 
the proposed change and conduct evaluation of conformance with the design intent. 

 Coordinate the preparation of the technical description of the CPR and assembly of 
necessary graphic details and specifications. 

 Provide draft CPR to City for review, unless directed otherwise by City. 
 Issue final CPR to Contractor with copies to City and appropriate design team members. 
 Log CPRs, including supporting information and City comments, in the DMS. 
 Review costs presented by Contractor for each CPR and conduct negotiation of pricing as 

necessary. 
 Review negotiated CPR costs with City for City's approval. 
 Assemble approved CPRs periodically into Change Orders. 
 Track and report the status of CPRs using logs that track the dates of: 

o Return from Contractor with pricing. 
o Contract Administrator’s review and recommendation of pricing. 
o City's acceptance. 

 
Assumptions 

 Negotiations between Consultant and Contractor are not binding until accepted by City. 
 Consultant will use its standard Construction Contract Administration forms for 

documenting contract modification activities. 
 The fee for this sub-task is based upon preparing and processing one hundred (100) 

CPRs. Actual preparation and processing time may vary depending upon the complexity 
of the CPR. On average, it is estimated that it will take 3 hours of Consultant’s 
construction administration team member time to prepare and process each CPR. If CPRs 
take longer to prepare and process than anticipated for reasons beyond the control of 
Consultant, City will increase the fee for this activity as a separate, additional fee activity 
which City could recover from Contractor through a construction contract change when 
appropriate. 

 Additional time required for excessive CPRs will be billed to City as a separate, 
additional fee activity. 

 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone conferences will 
be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 Change Proposal Request supporting information filed in the DMS. 
 Draft CPRs transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 Final CPRs transmitted to Contractor for pricing via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 Recommendation of acceptance to City transmitted via e-mail in .pdf format. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 16  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 

Sub-task 909 - Construction Change Orders and Tracking 
Objective 
Coordinate the combining of change documentation into Change Orders for execution by 
Contractor and City. 
 
Approach 

 Identify with City the strategy for combining CPRs and the timing of Change Orders. 
 Evaluate the project on a continual basis to determine when proposed changes need to be 

finalized to avoid or minimize adverse impact on on-going construction activity. 
 Combine Change Proposal Requests and Field Orders into Change Orders. 
 Assemble the necessary documentation and prepare the Change Order package for 

circulation to City and Contractor for execution.  
 Update Change Order logs and provide status reports tracking the execution of Change 

Orders. 
 Track Change Orders through Contractor's signature, Consultant’s signature 

recommending acceptance, and City executive action. 
 Review pay requests to verify Change Order items are broken out and that payment is not 

made until work is complete. 
 
Assumptions 

 City has the sole responsibility to authorize any changes to the construction contract.  
 Consultant will use its standard Construction Contract Administration forms for 

documenting contract modification activities. 
 The fee for this sub-task is based upon preparing and processing eight (8) Change Orders 

- one per month for seven of the eight months of construction and one finalizing change 
order. Actual preparation and processing response time may vary depending upon the 
complexity of the change order. On average, it is estimated that it will take 17 hours of 
Consultant’s construction administration team member time to prepare and process each 
Change Order. If Change Orders take longer to prepare and process than anticipated for 
reasons beyond the control of Consultant, City will increase the fee for this activity as a 
separate, additional fee activity which City could recover from Contractor through a 
construction contract change when appropriate. 

 Additional time required for excessive Change Orders will be billed to City as a separate, 
additional fee activity. 

 CPR and Change Order logs will be updated once a month 
 City will provide Consultant with copies of the fully executed change orders after signed 

by City and Contractor. 
 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone conferences will 

be billed to City. 
 
Deliverables 

 Change Order supporting information filed in the DMS. 
 Change Orders, including supporting information for each Change Order via e-mail in 

.pdf format. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 17  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 

Sub-task 910 - Final Geotechnical Recommendations  
Objective 
Coordinate final geotechnical recommendations for the Phase 5C.1 project. 
 
Approach 

 Consultant’s geotechnical sub-consultant will review substantially complete design plans 
and interview structural engineering design team members regarding the anticipated 
structural loads for planned improvements.  

 Consultant’s geotechnical sub-consultant will review the 2009 geotechnical evaluation 
and preliminary recommendations for the project and issue an addendum including final 
geotechnical recommendations specific to the Phase 5C.1 improvements.  

 
Assumptions 

 No additional fieldwork is anticipated for final recommendations.  
 The geotechnical evaluation addendum will reference the 2009 Geotechnical Engineering 

Evaluation for the Advanced Water Reclamation Facility, Phase 5B and 5C Expansion 
prepared by Strata Geotechnical Engineering and Materials Testing and will include 
additional or alternate recommendations specific to this project phase. 

 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone conferences will 
be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 Geotechnical evaluation addendum transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 

Sub-task 911 - City Furnished Equipment Supplier Coordination 
Objective 
Provide coordination between Contractor and City (Owner) Furnished, Contractor Installed 
(OFCI) equipment suppliers, including Integrated Membrane System supplier. 
 
Approach 

 Coordinate RFIs from Contractor related to OFCI systems with OFCI equipment 
suppliers. 

 Coordinate shipping times and unloading requirements between OFCI equipment 
suppliers, Contractor, and City. 

 Check OFCI equipment deliveries against shipping labels and bills of materials (BOMs) 
and inspect equipment for damage. Report any missing or damaged equipment to City or 
directly to OFCI equipment supplier. 

 Coordinate storage requirements of OFCI equipment with City. 
 Assist OFCI equipment suppliers with coordination of equipment installation and 

acceptance including equipment startup, commissioning and operations and maintenance 
training.  

 
Assumptions 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 18  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Reviews of Integrated Membrane System shop drawings and operations and maintenance 
manuals are provided under a separate scope. 

 Consultant will process RFIs in accordance with Sub-task 906 - Request for Information 
Review and Tracking. 

 Budget assumes Resident Project Representative is already on-site and does not include 
additional time or expenses for their services in this sub-task. 

 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone conferences will 
be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 List of missing or damaged OFCI equipment transmitted to City, or OFCI equipment 
supplier at City’s direction, via e-mail in .pdf format. 

Task 1000 - Field Services 

Sub-task 1001 - Field Observations 
Objective 
Determine substantial conformance of the completed construction with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents through observation of the Work. 
 
Approach 

 Provide general observation including:  
o Observe, record, and report Contractor's daily work progress to determine the 

Work observed is in general conformance with the requirements of the Contract 
Documents.  

o Document activities observed making note of deficiencies and any issues 
requiring resolution. Maintain work deficiency log in the DMS. 

o Create daily field reports defining specified work completed, Contractor work 
force figures, progress made on the controlling activity established by the 
approved construction schedule, job site visitors, and weather conditions. 

o Review approved shop drawings and apply them to the conducting of 
observations. 

o Photograph record construction to document progress or deficiencies, and label 
and log photos in the DMS. 

o Conduct, or coordinate the conduct of, specified inspections and document 
results.  

 Coordinate with Cultural Resources representative who is contracted directly with City, 
prior to construction activities to understand the role and activities of the representative 
and periodically during construction activities.  

 Maintain copies of permits and summary of their conditions onsite. 
 Monitor Contractor’s compliance with permit conditions and Contractor’s endeavor to 

resolve any known violations of local ordinance and other specific permit conditions.  
 Notify Contractor when written verification from the Materials Testing sub-consultant 

representative has been obtained stating that acceptable subgrade preparation is provided 
for structures and are ready to receive concrete for foundations and structural slabs on 
grade. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 19  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Monitor the prequalification of soils and concrete materials, and coordinate in-place 
moisture and density testing and the sampling and testing of concrete (see Sub-task 1002 
- Materials Testing and Special Inspection).  

 Observe and document pressure testing of interior and exterior piping systems. 
 Review stored materials and/or equipment for quantity determination for Contractor 

payment and to verify that equipment and/or materials are adequately protected until 
installed. Consultant will notify Contractor if additional measures are required protect the 
equipment.  

 Conduct periodic site visitations by design team member(s) and document observations 
by preparing Site Visitation Memorandums. 

o Follow up on any deficiencies noted by design team members by either requiring 
immediate correction or adding items to a progressive work deficiency list. 

 Develop and provide to Contractor an on-going list of items requiring correction to 
encourage the timely correction of noted construction deficiencies, including: 

o Monitor and document construction throughout the project duration and identify 
deficient items. 

o Provide Contractor with an updated list of non-conforming items at construction 
progress meetings. 

o As deficiencies are corrected, revise the list by indicating corrected status. 
o Utilize the deficiencies list to aid in identifying appropriate retainage amounts 

near project completion. 
o Issue Non-Conformance Reports for deficiencies not being acknowledged or 

addressed by Contractor with corrective measures or corrective action plans.  
 On a monthly basis, prior to signing off on the monthly payment request, review 

Contractor’s as-recorded drawings to verify the Contract Drawings are up-to-date with 
contract modifications and annotated to reflect actual construction. 

 Review tagging of equipment to verify conformance with approved registers for 
equipment, valves, and other items designated to be tagged by the Contract Documents.  

 Coordinate training activities between Contractor and City. 
 Monitor vendor training for City’s operations and maintenance personnel.   
 Document any observations made of property damage or personal injury accidents within 

the project construction limit lines, and notify and provide a written report to City. 
 
Assumptions 

 Consultant's observation or monitoring portions of the work performed under the 
construction contract shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for performing work 
in accordance with applicable contract documents. 

 Consultant shall not control or have charge of, and shall not be responsible for, 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, procedures of construction, health 
or safety programs or precautions connected with the work and shall not manage, 
supervise, control or have charge of construction. 

 Consultant shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of construction Contractor(s) 
or other parties on the project.  

 Observations will be performed in accordance with industry-recognized standard 
practices. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 20  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Consultant will use its standard Construction Contract Administration forms for 
documenting construction observation and inspection activities. 

 City agrees to include a provision in the construction contract that requires Contractor to 
list Consultant as an additional insured on Contractor’s commercial general liability 
insurance.  

 Contractor is responsible for compliance with permit conditions; therefore Consultant 
cannot ensure Contractor’s compliance with the permit conditions. Consultant will only 
notify City of observed conditions and violations. 

 Responsibilities for jobsite safety are the sole responsibility of Contractor. The failure of 
Consultant to report on safety violations will neither relieve Contractor from their 
responsibility for safety on the project site nor shift this responsibility from Contractor to 
Consultant.  Any unsafe activity or activities shall be halted immediately until remedial 
actions take place. Contractor shall resume work only if Contractor deems jobsite 
conditions safe to work.   

 Monitoring removal and/or disposal of contaminated materials is not included. 
 The fee for this sub-task is based upon field observation from a single Resident Project 

Representative (RPR) for eight (8) months [thirty five (35) weeks] conducted over a 
projected ten (10) month construction period. On average, it is estimated that RPR field 
observation will occur eight (8) hours per day for one hundred seventy five (175) days. 

 Design team site visitations will last up to three (3) days each and a total of up to ten (10) 
visits will be conducted occurring approximately once per month. 

 Normal working hours for Consultant inspection staff and Contractor will coincide with 
normal treatment plant hours: Monday through Friday, 7:00 am to 3:30 pm. 

 Should Contractor elect to perform work outside of normal working hours, on Saturday, 
Sunday, or legal holiday, Consultant will require that City authorize field observation 
services prior to Consultant starting observation.  

 If additional labor and expenses for performing field observation services outside normal 
working hours or beyond estimate included in this sub-task are required due to increased 
construction duration, City will increase the fee for this activity as a separate, additional 
fee activity which City could recover from Contractor or OFCI equipment supplier(s) 
through a construction contract change when appropriate. 

 A field office will not be needed by Consultant for the project. Consultant will utilize its 
existing Coeur d’Alene office located across the street from the project site as the base 
for field inspection. 

 Direct expenses for travel, subsistence, printing, photocopying, technology, and 
telephone conferences will be billed to City. Meals will be billed at the current Idaho 
Transportation Department (ITD) Per Diem rate. 

 
Deliverables 

 Inspector’s Daily Reports transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format, if requested. 
 Photographs filed in the DMS. 
 Reports of property damage or personal injury accidents transmitted to City via e-mail in 

.pdf format. 
 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 21  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

Sub-task 1002 - Materials Testing and Special Inspection  
Objective 
Monitor quality of work by testing construction materials and conducting special inspections. 
 
Approach 

 Develop Materials and Special Inspection Plan presenting methodology for conducting 
site inspections and how reporting and certifications will be presented to the local 
building official, including: 

o Quality control testing of construction materials. 
o Quality control testing of equipment performance and systems. 
o Process performance testing. 
o Special Inspections per currently adopted Building Code. 
o Submit weekly summaries of Inspector’s Daily Reports, materials testing 

information (as available), and special inspections (as available) to City and local 
building official. 

o Upon Substantial Completion of the project, Consultant will prepare a Special 
Inspection Certification for the project and submit to the local building official. 

 Maintain records for materials testing and special inspections in the DMS. 
 Quality control testing of construction materials may include: 

o Soil/Aggregate Observation and Testing including observation and testing of 
compaction during site grading, excavation, footing and slab subgrade 
preparation, utility trench and wall backfilling; and sampling, testing, and 
recommendations regarding suitability of on-site and any imported materials used 
for backfill. 

o Concrete Sampling and Testing including testing for slump, temperature (concrete 
and ambient), air content, verification of mix design and casting of compressive 
test cylinders for verification purposes. 

o Structural Masonry Testing including compression testing of pre-construction 
masonry prisms, grout, and mortar for at least each 5,000 square-feet (SF) of 
masonry construction. 

o Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) Observation and Testing including observation, 
sampling and compaction testing during HMA paving placement. 

 Special Inspections per currently adopted Building Code may include: 
o Reinforcing Steel Placement and Embedded Items Special Inspection by 

International Code Council (ICC) certified special inspector to verify the 
placement of reinforcing steel and embedded items prior to the placement of 
concrete. 

o Concrete Observation by ICC certified special inspector to observe placement of 
structural concrete 

o Structural Masonry Observation by ICC certified special inspector to observe 
placement of masonry units, mortar, reinforcing steel, and items embedded in 
masonry. 

o Structural Steel Field Welding Special Inspection by a special inspector certified 
by either the American Welding Society (AWS-CWI) or ICC to observe welding 
operations during structural steel erection and connection. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 22  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

o Drilled-In-Anchors (Adhesive/Expansion Anchors) Special Inspection of adhesive 
or expansion anchors. 

 Provide notification to Contractor of materials that fail to meet specifications.  
 Testing shall be performed on an as-needed basis by an accredited testing laboratory 

approved by local building official.   
 Consultant shall identify non-conformance issues, prepare reports, evaluate corrective 

actions, perform testing, establish conformance, and prepare documentation. 
Assumptions 

 Consultant will perform testing in accordance with construction contract documents and 
other recognized/applicable standards and 

 Consultant assumes City has conducted an on-site hazardous materials assessment and 
has identified all required mitigation prior to project initiation. 

 Casting of compressive test cylinders for verification purposes will include one (1) set of 
five (5) cylinders per one hundred (100) cubic yards or for each day’s placement. 

 Consultant has included a Sub-consultant fee of $39,072.00 for materials testing and 
special inspections. The fee was prepared based on Sub-consultant’s experience with 
testing requirements and an assumed construction approach.  

 The material tests and special inspections assumed for the fee of this sub-task include: 
o Fifty (50) visits for soil density testing. 
o Twenty (20) visits for special inspection of reinforced concrete. 
o Thirty (30) visits for concrete testing. 
o Two hundred (200) concrete cylinder castings and compression tests. 
o Eight (8) sets of concrete shrinkage tests. 
o Sixteen (16) visits for special inspection of structural masonry. 
o Four (4) masonry grout prism tests. 
o Two (2) masonry mortar cylinder castings and compression tests. 
o Three (3) for special inspection of structural steel field welding. 
o Five (5) visits for special inspection of drilled in anchors. 
o Two (2) visits for asphalt material and density test. 

 If Sub-consultant material tests and special inspection costs exceed the fee presented 
above for reasons beyond the control of Consultant or Sub-consultant, City will increase 
the fee for this activity as a separate, additional fee activity.  

 Consultant will submit invoices to City for the costs of these tests plus Consultant mark-
up of Sub-consultants. 

 Direct expenses for travel, printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone 
conferences will be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 Materials and Special Inspection Plan transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format and 
one (1) hardcopy delivered to local building official. 

 Weekly summaries of Inspector’s Daily Reports, materials testing information, and 
special inspections transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format and one (1) hardcopy 
delivered to local building official. 

 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 23  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

Sub-task 1003 - Field Surveying and Staking 
Objective 
Establish a horizontal and vertical survey control network around the project site for Contractor 
use in performance of the work. 
 
Approach 

 Provide field surveying to establish horizontal and vertical control at multiple points on 
the site for facility construction, including: 

o Establishing two (2) horizontal control points.  
o Establishing two (2) vertical control points. 

 
Assumptions 

 Control points will be established in City’s existing on-site coordinate system.  
 Field survey information will be developed and control points provided for project 

components to provide Contractor with reasonable information to complete their own on-
site control and field survey of the work.  

 Staking of pipelines, utility corridors, buildings, structures, access roads, parking areas, 
site grading, and fencing will be Contractor’s responsibility.   

 Control points will be set one time only. Re-setting control points for Contractor to 
complete the work shall be done solely at Contractor’s expense.  

 Consultant has included a Sub-consultant budget of $2,200.00 for field surveying and 
staking. The fee was prepared based on Sub-consultant’s experience with these activities 
and an assumed approach. 

 If Sub-consultant field surveying and staking costs exceed the fee presented above for 
reasons beyond the control of Consultant or Sub-consultant, City will increase the fee for 
this activity as a separate, additional fee activity.  

 Consultant will submit invoices to City for the costs of these services plus Consultant 
mark-up of Sub-consultants. 

 Direct expenses for travel, printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone 
conferences will be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 Established horizontal and vertical control points indicated by pins set and/or stakes. 
 

Task 1100 - Application Software Programming Services 

Sub-task 1101 - Programming and System Integration Services 
 
Objective 
Provide software programming services for equipment installed as part of this project. 
 
Approach 

 Conduct onsite meetings with City and Contractor to discuss the mechanics of 
implementing the software changes and to define standards to be followed.  



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 24  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Review Contractor provided equipment, electrical and instrumentation and control 
system submittals, and provide coordination for electrical and instrumentation systems. 

 Develop Programming Schedule following receipt of Contractor’s project schedule to 
show the required programming to be completed one month before the associated 
construction start-up date.  

 Manage the work provided to verify compliance with the current wastewater treatment 
plant HMI software standards, quality of documentation, and scheduling. 

 Assist City with the selection of computer workstations, software packages, and 
networking components required for the process control and monitoring equipment for 
the project. This includes the recommendation of computer hardware and software for the 
SCADA Workstations, SCADA Servers, and Office Workstations. 

 Provide plant programmable logic controllers (PLC) system integration and supervisory 
control and data acquisition (SCADA) system programming services for equipment 
provided by Contractor.  Provide programming and system integration services to 
interface equipment provided by contractor with OFCI equipment. 

 Program and test operator interface terminal (OIT) and humane machine interface (HMI) 
process screens and database configuration. 

 Perform functional testing and verification of software programming. 
 Provide field commissioning and software startup support. 
 Develop a PLC, Operator Interface (OI) and HMI program modification Plan. 
 Before loading the new or modified programming into the various PLC, OIT, and HMI 

systems, coordinate with City and Sub-consultant to confirm if additional modifications 
have been made to the PLC, OI or HMI software. 

 Develop programming for the new equipment to meet the requirements identified in the 
updated Final Software Pre-Design Report developed during the Phase 5B project. 

 Merge the new or modified PLC, OI and HMI programming with the existing PLC ladder 
logic and OI and HMI graphic displays where required. 

 Obtain the current HMI process screens, configuration files, and databases (i.e., process 
database, alarm area database, picture files, etc.) for the WWTP from City. 

 The new HMI and OI process tag databases, tag-groups, process screens and the picture 
files for the new equipment being added will be merged or replaced with existing screens 
and files on the SCADA Server. Screen navigation, consistent with existing, will be 
modified to integrate these changes into the system. 

 Coordinate with City for required modifications to existing HMI and OI screens. 
 Test and debug software programming. Consultant may use a software simulation 

package (where possible and practical) to thoroughly test the PLC, HMI and OI software 
process interface. The input/output (I/O) simulator software program will be used to 
simulate the real I/O to be connected for this project. Only the pertinent process databases 
and process screens will be active in the simulator for testing to limit confusion and 
expedite testing. 

 Conduct a review meeting to present the 90 percent software programming to City for 
review. 

 Finalize software programming. 
 
Assumptions 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 25  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Meetings will occur monthly in City’s Wastewater Administration Building conference 
room and via conference call for those team members not in physical attendance, will 
involve up to three (3) Consultant team members, and will last up to one (1) hour each. 

 A project FTP site within Consultant’s FTP system will be developed to enable 
“common” access to available information applicable to system integration. 

 Consultant has not included fees for procurement of these components, and assumes 
these hardware and software items will be delivered to Consultant by City as needed by 
the project schedule. 

 City will provide current PLC programs, OI and HMI process screens, configuration 
files, tag database(s), data files, and other required files prior to Consultant beginning the 
programming effort. 

 The fee for this sub-task is based upon factory acceptance testing occurring within a 500 
mile radius of the project site and occurring over a single, continuous period of up to five 
(5) days. 

 Consultant has included a Sub-consultant budget of $142,340.00 for systems integration. 
The fee was prepared based on Sub-consultant’s experience with these activities and an 
assumed approach. If Sub-consultant systems integration costs exceed the fee presented 
above for reasons beyond the control of Consultant or Sub-consultant, City will increase 
the fee for this activity as a separate, additional fee activity.  

 Consultant will submit invoices to City for the costs of these services plus Consultant 
mark-up of Sub-consultants. 

 Direct expenses for travel, subsistence, printing, photocopying, technology, and 
telephone conferences will be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 Meeting agendas and notes transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 Project FTP site. 
 Software programming loaded into new PLC. 
 HMI process screens loaded into existing SCADA system. 
 

 

Task 1200 - Systems Commissioning 

Sub-task 1201 - Operations and Maintenance Manual Review and Tracking 
Objective 
Facilitate review of Contractor provided manufacturer operations and maintenance (O&M) 
manuals.  
 
Approach 

 Receive, log, and maintain O&M manual documents in the DMS. 
 Conduct review of O&M manual transmittal form and manual contents to confirm 

Contractor's compliance with administrative requirements and distribute to appropriate 
design team member(s) for review. 

 Review manuals for compliance with the specifications. 
 Receive and collate comments on manual reviews performed by others, including City. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 26  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Provide written comments or approval to Contractor. 
 Obtain from Contractor the required number of hard copies for distribution and project 

files.  
 
Assumptions 

 Consultant will use its standard Construction Contract Administration forms for the 
O&M Manual review process. 

 The fee for this sub-task is based upon receiving and reviewing eighty (80) submittals 
and fifty (50) re-submittals. Actual review time may vary depending upon the complexity 
and quality of the submittals. On average, it is estimated that each submittal will take 
2.75 hours of construction administration team member time to review and process and 
each re-submittal will take 1.75 hours of construction administration team members’ time 
to review and process. If Contractor submittals are incomplete or take longer to review 
than anticipated for reasons beyond the control of Consultant, City will increase the fee 
for this activity as a separate, additional fee activity which City could recover from 
Contractor through a construction contract change when appropriate. 

 Submittal reviews following one (1) re-submittal will be billed to City as a separate, out-
of-scope activity from which City can, at its discretion, deduct the amount from 
Contractor’s payment application(s). 

 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone conferences will 
be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 Assembled comment sheets in each manual file in the DMS. 
 Operation and Maintenance Manual review responses transmitted to Contractor and City 

via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 

Sub-task 1202 - Electronic Operations and Maintenance Manual Update 
Objective 
Prepare an electronic Operations and Maintenance (eO&M) Manual which addresses the 
improvements incorporated in this project. 
 
Approach 

 Prepare an eO&M Manual that includes:   
o Electronic text and graphics files to reflect the changes in the plant. 
o Unit process operating procedures.   
o General standard operating procedures for the key process systems included in the 

Phase 5C.1 project and identified for facility startup and operator training, and 
software links from the eO&M links to provide operator access to selected eO&M 
materials. 

o Facility and equipment descriptions, design criteria, process control narratives, 
design drawings, and vendor manuals.  

 Develop as a web application in the Microsoft ASP.net web environment in the following 
steps that will function on a City provided Windows-based server.    

o Web Site Map Expansion.   



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 27  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Conduct a project kick-off meeting to discuss general eO&M content, 
system configuration and customizations, system installation and training, 
coordination with the design team, and the overall time schedule for 
development and implementation of the eO&M Manual system.   

 Develop web site map modifications in coordination with City.   
 Focus on developing the high level architecture of the eO&M Manual 

structure to define the structure and organization.  
 Prepare a draft web site map modification for review and comment.    

o Manual Content Preparation.   
 Prepare eO&M manual content for each unit process shown in the web site 

map.  
 Example content definitions are shown in the following table.  

Example eO&M Content 
Section Content 
Overview A short description of each unit process. 
Theory A short description of the theory behind each unit 

process illustrating the design intent. Strategies for 
evaluating data and making process adjustments. 

Schematic Hyperlinks to 2D and 3D figures illustrating each unit 
process. 

Design Criteria Tabular listing of unit process sizes, loadings, and other 
design criteria. 

Equipment Hyperlinks to equipment manuals provided by 
equipment vendors in PDF file format.  

Controls A description of manual and automatic controls.  
Procedures A list of duties to be performed by operators when 

making daily process checks. General procedures for 
starting up and shutting down the process. 

Safety General safety considerations for the unit process. 
 

 Note that content definitions for this project will be specific and 
customized to those sub-sections agreed upon and defined by the web site 
map developed with City. 

o Graphic Content Definition.   
 Develop 2D and 3D figures for communicating to City plant O&M staff 

the design intent, and how to operate the unit process.  
 Conduct a site visit near the end of construction to allow the content 

author to take pictures of equipment, panels, screens, process areas, etc. 
for incorporation into the eO&M.   

 Incorporate the Phase 5C.1 record drawings into the eO&M Manual in 
.pdf file format and provide hyperlinks to each drawing. 

o System Configuration and Customization.   
 Develop specific system customizations, including screen layouts, file 

formats, administration and integration needs.  
 Identify technology issues related to installation on City’s web server. 

o System Installation.   



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 28  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Develop the draft and final eO&M Manuals on City’s server.  
  Prepare and deliver a draft electronic copy of the revised text and graphics for review by 

City approximately one month prior to startup. 
 Revise the text and graphic files and deploy one (1) final electronic version on City’s 

server.  
 Facilitate a four-hour training session with City plant staff on how to use and maintain 

the eO&M.  
 Provide Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) with a CD-ROM containing 

the associated electronic text and graphics files. 
 
Assumptions 

 The eO&M Manual content and format will follow previously developed eO&M 
standards and will at least provide the content required for Idaho DEQ.   

 Kick off meeting will occur in City’s Wastewater Administration Building conference 
room, will involve up to one (1) Consultant team member, and will last up to four (4) 
hours. 

 Detailed standard operating procedures will not be developed, except under contract 
amendment if directed by City operations staff.  If detailed standard operating procedures 
are developed, they will be completed in collaboration with City staff. 

 The eO&M Manual will be internally accessible via Internet Explorer and will not be 
accessible by the general public.  

 An on-line HTML text editor (Cute Editor) will be embedded in the eO&M Manual to 
enable easy text editing by City without having to know HTML.  Consultant owns a Cute 
Editor Enterprise License that allows for free distribution as long as the software is used 
on Consultant's eO&M application. 

 The servers, other hardware, and software necessary to store, view, and operate the 
eO&M Manual are not included in this scope. City will provide ancillary software on 
City's computers necessary to run the eO&M Manual, including Microsoft Internet 
Explorer, MS Windows, or Vista and the SQL database. The systems in-place are 
assumed to meet the following minimum requirements: 

o Path to and the necessary space on a City provided server at the WWTP facilities 
for the eO&M Manual.  The server shall be a Microsoft Windows machine 
(running Microsoft Windows Server 2003).  

o At least a 2.0 GHz processor or better and 512 of RAM and at least 2 gigabytes of 
hard drive space.  

o IIS (Internet Information Services 5.0 or higher). 
o Microsoft.NET (pronounced dot net), Framework 1.1. 
o SQL Server 2000 or later. 
o AutoCAD viewer.  

 City will provide Information Technology (IT) staff for maintaining eO&M Manual 
functionality. As the eO&M Manual will be developed using City’s virtual private 
network (VPN), City will maintain that network connection for HDR access throughout 
the course of the work. 

 The figures will be developed from the conformed contract drawings but will be modified 
by deleting extraneous construction related information that is not pertinent to O&M 
personnel. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 29  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Figures will be prepared in AutoCAD and converted to PDF file format for inclusion in 
the eO&M Manual.  

 Graphics will be sized for the monitor size that City intends to use to access the eO&M 
Manual.   

 A total of twenty (20) 2D and five (5) 3D figures are anticipated. 
 Site visit will involve up to one (1) Consultant team member and will last up to four (4) 

hours. 
 City will provide a single set of unconflicting review comments on draft eO&M Manual 

within two weeks of receipt.  
 Training session will occur in City’s Wastewater Administration Building Conference 

Room, will involve up to one (1) Consultant team member, and will last up to four (4) 
hours. 

 Direct expenses for travel, subsistence, printing, photocopying, technology, and 
telephone conferences will be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 Kick-off meeting agenda and notes transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 Draft eO&M Manual loaded on City’s server. 
 Final eO&M Manual loaded on City’s server. 
 Training session materials delivered to City in hard copy form, up to ten (10) copies. 

 

Sub-task 1203 - Facility Commissioning 
Objective 
Assess overall performance of equipment and systems installed as part of this project. 
 
Approach 

 Provide operational assistance to City after system start-up by Contractor and OFCI 
equipment suppliers 

 Provide pre-startup training to communicate to the plant operators the following: 
o Design criteria and process flow for each unit process. 
o Available field and SCADA equipment controls. 

 Provide startup coordination between Contractor, Consultant’s construction 
administration team and City plant staff during startup of the new equipment.  The startup 
coordinator will allow the startup of new equipment to occur if, and only if, the 
equipment and ancillary subsystems are considered by both Contractor and Consultant to 
be ready for service and the manufacturer’s O&M manuals are on-site and available for 
use by City plant staff.   

 Observe Contractor’s clean water testing.  The clean water test occurs prior to startup and 
uses non-potable water to demonstrate the functionality of new equipment and controls. 
The following process units will have a clean water test: 

o Secondary effluent transfer pumping and straining. 
o Membrane filtration including permeate and backpulse pumping. 
o Return tertiary sludge pumping. 
o Tank drain pumping. 
o Waste tertiary sludge pumping. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 30  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

o Aeration Air. 
o Membrane Scour Air. 

 Conduct startup service for each project element or unit.  Startup means placing the 
equipment into operation for its intended purpose and using the intended process 
material.  Startup services will include the following activities: 

o Review and approve equipment supplier training agendas and training material 
outlines as provided by Contractor. Using discretion based on experience with 
vendor training, enforce contract provisions for vendor training duration. 

o Coordinate vendor training schedule with Contractor and plant staff for vendor 
training to occur on Wednesdays as a first choice, Tuesdays and Thursdays as 
second choice, and avoid Mondays and Fridays. 

o Prepare a startup plan that lists specific responsibilities for Contractor, 
construction administration staff, PLC/SCADA programmer(s) and plant staff. 

o Provide the written startup plan to Contractor, the construction administration 
staff, PLC/SCADA programmer(s) and the plant staff approximately one month 
before startup. 

o Schedule and conduct startup review meetings (as required) between Contractor, 
the construction management staff, PLC/SCADA programmer(s) and the plant 
staff approximately two weeks before startup. 

o Revise and reissue the startup plan and schedule as needed based on the review 
meeting. 

o Verify the equipment is ready for the clean water test. 
o Verify the manufacturer's field service forms have been completed for each piece 

of equipment. 
o Verify pipe pressure tests and concrete water tightness tests have been conducted. 
o Verify rotating equipment has been bumped to check for proper operation and 

rotation. 
o Verify instrument calibration and loop testing is complete. 
o Coordinate with Contractor, Consultant’s construction administration team, the 

PLC/SCADA programmer and City plant staff for process material to be 
introduced to the process in such a way avoids or reduces the impact to the rest of 
the plant. 

o Verify and document that the controls and alarms are working in conformance 
with the software pre-design report. 

o Verify and document the results of testing that was deferred from the clean water 
test. 

o Identify and document equipment or control deficiencies (i.e., punch list). 
o Provide discipline-specific deficiency lists. 

 Conduct operator training during the clean water test and startup on an informal basis in 
the field. The purpose of this training is to provide an opportunity to answer operator 
questions, to demonstrate the transition from manual control to automatic control, and to 
demonstrate alternate modes of operation.  

 
Assumptions 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 31  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Present the pre-startup training in a classroom setting using a lecture format 
supplemented with figures and graphics delivered via an overhead projector or using 
Microsoft PowerPoint on an LCD projector.   

 Include draft copies of the Operations Manual sections or HDR developed process 
presentations in the training material for each specific session.   

 The portion of each module pertaining to SCADA controls will be presented by 
Consultant SCADA programmer who programmed that system. Consultant SCADA 
programmer will use an LCD projector to show the actual SCADA screens for each 
equipment item discussed in the module. The SCADA presentation will cover manual 
starting, stopping and speed control of equipment, set-point adjustment, operating mode 
changes, alarms, data collection and trending. 

 The fee for this sub-task is based upon commissioning services from a single operations 
specialist for up to eight (8) site visits of up to forty (40) hours each. Actual 
commissioning time may vary depending upon the complexity of the systems being 
commissioned or unforeseen delays.  

 Normal working hours for Consultant operations specialist, Contractor, and OFCI 
equipment suppliers will coincide with normal treatment plant hours: Monday through 
Friday, 7:00 am to 3:30 pm. 

 Should Contractor or OFCI equipment suppliers elect to perform work outside of normal 
working hours, on Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, Consultant will require that City 
authorize commissioning services prior to Consultant starting.  

 Actual hours will be tracked and additional work will not be performed without prior 
approval from City.  

 If additional labor and expenses for performing commissioning services outside normal 
working hours or beyond estimate included in this sub-task are required due to delays 
from Contractor or OFCI equipment suppliers, City will increase the fee for this activity 
as a separate, additional fee activity which City could recover from Contractor or OFCI 
equipment supplier(s) through a construction contract change when appropriate. 

 Direct expenses for travel, subsistence, printing, photocopying, technology, and 
telephone conferences will be billed to City. 

 
 
Deliverables 

 Startup checklists and training materials customized for this project.  
 Training sessions for each of the separate unit project element or process (may be 

consecutive or combined with other systems and held on the same day). 
 Startup plans coordinated with the construction schedule. 

 

Task 1300 - Project Close-out 

Sub-task 1301 - Construction Contract Close-out  
Objective 
Achieve an orderly, well-documented and complete closeout of the construction contract. 
 
Approach 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 32  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 Receive and review Contractor's required substantial completion submittal, and 
determine if Project is ready for substantial completion inspection, including: 

o Develop substantial completion submittal checklist. 
o Verify submittal of required documents. 
o Review Contractor Record Drawings. 
o Review Contractor’s punch list and Consultant’s progressive list of incomplete 

and deficient items and determine if the substantial completion inspection is 
appropriate in accordance with Contract requirements. 

o Schedule substantial completion inspection, or notify Contractor that the Work 
has not progressed to point of substantial completion as defined by the Contract 
Documents. 

 Coordinate, conduct and document the substantial completion inspection and issuance of 
the Certificate of Substantial Completion including: 

o Notify City and design team members of date of substantial completion 
inspection. 

o Prepare and distribute the punch list format to the parties conducting the 
inspection. 

o Conduct the Substantial Completion Inspection. 
o Compile the punch list and identify the tentative date of substantial completion, 

and prepare and issue tentative Certificate of Substantial Completion to City for 
review and concurrence. 

o If there are multiple portions of the Work with different substantial completion 
dates, prepare a summary of the dates of expiration of the various Correction 
Periods. 

o Upon concurrence of City, issue the definitive Certificate of Substantial 
Completion and punch list setting the date of Substantial Completion. 

o Review progress of corrective action on punch list items and periodically update 
and re-issue the punch list and issuance of the Certificate of Substantial 
Completion for the entire or designated portions of the Work. 

 Receive and review Contractor's required final completion submittal. 
 Coordinate and attend the final inspection meeting and physical walk-through of the 

Project, including: 
o Schedule the final inspection date and notify Contractor, City and Regulatory 

Agency. 
o Assemble the various final completion submittal documents, required by the 

Contract Documents, for the final inspection meeting and review them with the 
various parties. 

o Conduct, document and distribute the findings of the final inspection. 
 Collect closeout documents required by the Contract Documents and forward the 

documents along with Contractors Final Application and Certificate for Payment to City 
for processing by City. 

 Compile one set of construction project files (submittals, RFIs, change orders, record 
drawings, permits, written correspondence and documentation, digital photographs, test 
results, daily reports, work directives, warranties, operational manuals, etc.) and submit 
to City. 

 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 33  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

Assumptions 
 Project Closeout may start when Contractor is still on site, but Contractor will be offsite 

for most of the closeout period. 
 Direct expenses for travel, subsistence, printing, photocopying, technology, and 

telephone conferences will be billed to City. 
 
Deliverables 

 Certificate(s) of Substantial Completion and punch list(s) transmitted to City and 
Contractor via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Certificate of Final Completion with Contractors Final Application and Certificate for 
Payment transmitted to City and Contractor via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 One complete set of electronic construction project files delivered to City on CD-ROM. 
 

Sub-task 1302 - Record Drawings 
Objective 
Prepare record drawings for project. 
 
Approach 

 Consultant will monitor the status of Contractor’s as-built drawings every other week at 
the Construction Progress Meetings. The Design Team will make changes to the contract 
documents showing field adjustments and changes on a monthly basis.   

 Prepare final record drawings. 
 Provide City with one (1) half-size hard copy set of record drawings (11 IN x 17 IN 

sheets).   
 Provide record drawings in .pdf format for use in the eO&M Manual. 

 
Assumptions 

 Contractor will red-line a full size (22”x34”) hard copy of the construction contract 
documents on a monthly basis to incorporate RFIs, field orders, change proposal 
requests, submittal data, and changes based on records received from both Consultant and 
City. 

 Record drawings will be based on construction records provided by Contractor, City and 
on-site resident project representatives and will be completed within three (3) months of 
the date of receipt of all of the marked-up prints and other necessary data from 
Contractor. 

 Direct expenses for printing, photocopying, technology, and telephone conferences will 
be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 One (1) hard copy set of record drawings delivered to City.  
 One (1) electronic copy of record drawings in .pdf format delivered to City on CD-ROM. 

 

Sub-task 1303 - Project Completion Certification 
Objective 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 34  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

Conduct final project reviews and assist City in completion of project close-out reporting and 
coordination with Idaho DEQ. Conduct final one-year certification evaluation and reporting to 
meet Idaho DEQ project closeout requirements. 
 
Approach 

 Provide City with certification documentation required for submittal to Idaho DEQ.  
 Conduct a final construction inspection within sixty (60) days after final completion and 

review the following items:  
o The facility is complete, operating, and meets effluent limitations.  
o The facility conforms to the approved construction drawings, specifications, and 

change orders.  
o Construction and accounting records are adequate and available. 
o Construction impact mitigation measures and special conditions of the loan 

authorization have been met. 
 Complete Idaho DEQ Form 11-E, the Final Construction Inspection Report, and provide 

a copy to City.  
 Conduct a one-year certification including on-site inspection and process data review 

(420) days after final completion. Review the following items:  
o The facility is operating in accordance with the approved plans and specifications 

and meets effluent limitations and process performance criteria.  
o Construction warranty items have been addressed and special conditions of the 

project loan(s) have been met. 
 
Assumptions 

 Deficiencies discovered during the inspection will be discussed with City for City to 
assign correction to Contractor as a warrantable item during the correction period. 

 Direct expenses for travel, subsistence, printing, photocopying, technology, and 
telephone conferences will be billed to City. 

 
Deliverables 

 Final Construction Inspection Report transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 
 Final One-year Certification Memorandum transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 

Task 1400 - Additional Unanticipated, Urgent, or Special Services 

Sub-task 1401 - Allowance for Unanticipated Costs 
Objective 
Allow for cost of unanticipated, but necessary additional Consultant services.  
 
Approach 

 Consultant will provide additional Consultant services, which are unplanned, urgent 
and/or critical to maintaining the project schedule and progress of the work.   

 The services for this task must be specifically scoped, agreed to and authorized in writing 
by City prior to performing the work. 



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 35  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

 An allowance of $30,000 has been included for additional unanticipated, urgent or special 
services.   

Assumptions 
 If Contractor files a claim on the work in accordance with the General Conditions, City 

can amend this contract to provide associated claims and litigation services.  There is no 
budget included in this agreement for services to assist in litigation. 

 Additional unanticipated, urgent or special services provided by a sub-consultant and 
contracted through Consultant are allowed under this sub-task with appropriate 
Consultant mark-up. 

 
Deliverables 

 As defined in future work authorizations. 
 

  



Resolution No. 13-029 
TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 36  Scope of Services – Exhibit C-A 
 
 

SCHEDULE 
Assuming that Notice to Proceed will be issued on May 27, 2013, the project schedule is as 
follows.  If the NTP occurs after this date, the schedule will be moved by an equal number of 
days.  
 

Task Description Schedule  

700 Secondary Improvements Through June 11, 2013 

800 Construction Administration Through May 30, 2014 

900 Construction Engineering Through May 30, 2014 

1000 Field Services Through May 30, 2014 

1100 Application Software Programming Services Through May 30, 2014 

1200 Systems Commissioning Through May 30, 2014 

1300 Project Close-out Through May 30, 2014 

1400 Additional Unanticipated, Urgent, or Special Services To be determined 

 

COMPENSATION 
Consultant’s total compensation for professional services provided pursuant to this agreement, 
including labor and overhead costs and expenses, subconsultant compensation, subconsultant 
mark-up, and Consultant’s fixed fee of $94,115.00, shall not exceed $1,243,098.00 without 
written authorization by City.   
 
Consultant shall invoice City monthly for Consultant’s services.  Invoices shall itemize costs 
incurred for each task identified in the scope of work.   
 
 



TMF/Nitrification Improvements Page 1  Scope of Services – Exhibit B 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 REVISED 
(Replaces previously approved Amendment No. 1) 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
PHASE 5C.1 INITIAL TERTIARY MEMBRANE FILTRATION (TMF) / NITRIFICATION 

IMPROVEMENTS 
 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 
FOR 

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION 
 
 

 



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
Date: April 24, 2013  
 
From: Kenny Gabriel, Fire Chief  
 
Re: Fire Department Only Parking Zone on East Lakeshore Drive  
 
 
DECISION POINT:   Should  Council approve “No Parking-Fire Lane” signs on two 
locations on East Lakeshore Drive so Fire Department (FD) apparatus can safely stage 
while operating at that location?  
  
HISTORY:   City Administration and the FD have been working with the 11th St. Marina 
for a number of years regarding the lease of the area where the marina is located.  In that 
agreement space was allocated to the City for moorage of public safety vessels. Space 
was utilized in 2005 when the FD used PWC’s for first response on water emergencies.  
That program has been abandoned for now but we are refurbishing a fire boat with a goal 
of being placed into service this summer.   The 11th St. Marina is still obligated, through 
the lease with the City to provide moorage space, which they have.  One of the challenges 
faced at the 11th St. site is FD access.  That area is a popular recreational spot during the 
summer months and parking of apparatus could be an issue.  We would like to propose a 
no-parking area near that entrance to the 11th St. Marina at 1102 E. Lakeshore Dr.  We 
are asking for a FIRE LANE on 50 feet of frontage at that address. The resident at 1102 
E. Lakeshore  has been consulted and have shown support for the proposed no parking 
area.        
  
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:  We will have to place signs at that location, otherwise there 
is no cost. 
  
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS:  If the Fire Department received a call which requires the 
use of the fire boat we will need a place to stage the responding apparatus in a quick 
manner.  Also, if we are training on the boat we will need to park apparatus in close 
proximity to the entrance to 11th St. Marina in case we get an emergency call which 
requires those crews to respond.  The proposed FIRE LANE gives quick access to the 
East gate on 11th St. Marina and a straight approach to the boats moorage area.  The 2009 
International Fire Code (IFC) Section 503 allows the Fire Department to require access to 
needed facilities. The 2009 IFC, section 503.3 require that all signage for fire department 
access shall read NO PARKING-FIRE LANE.     
  
DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION:  Approve NO PARKING –FIRE LANE 
signs to be placed on East Lakeshore Drive for Fire Department access to the 11th St. 
Marina. 
  





PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

DATE:  May 13, 2013 
 
FROM:  James Remitz, Capital Program Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorization to Solicit Bids for the Construction of WWTP Phase        
5C-1: Initial Tertiary Membrane Filtration / Nitrification Improvements 
 

 
DECISION POINT:  The City Council may desire to approve the plans and 
specifications for the construction of Phase 5C-1 and authorize the solicitation for 
construction bids for this project. 
 
HISTORY:  The planning and design processes for this project are complete.  
The proposed improvements will provide the necessary buildings, tankage, 
equipment and piping to provide for the initial tertiary membrane filtration and 
nitrification improvements necessary for the enhanced biological nutrient removal 
capabilities required by the new discharge permit.  The estimated cost of 
construction for this project is $ 8,000,000. 
Contractor pre-qualification has been conducted in accordance with Idaho 
Statute 67-2805 to limit bidding by contractors who have provided sufficient 
information to demonstrate their ability to satisfactorily construct a facility of this 
size and scope. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: The City has applied for and anticipates receiving a low 
interest (2% to 2.5%) loan from the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality 
to provide the funding for this project.  The loan will be re-paid by the recently 
approved issuance of revenue bonds.  The Wastewater Fund currently has a 
sufficient cash reserve balance to begin the construction of this eighteen (18) 
month project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Wastewater staff recommends that the City Council 
approve the plans and specifications and authorize the solicitation of bids for the 
construction of WWTP Phase 5C-1: Initial Tertiary Filtration / Nitrification 
Improvements. 



 
 
 
DATE:  MAY 15, 2013 
 
   TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
   RE:  SETTING OF PUBLIC HEARING DATE: JUNE 18, 2013 
 
 
Mayor Bloem, 
 
The Planning Department has forwarded the following item to the City Council for scheduling of a public 
hearing.  In keeping with state law and Council policy, the Council will set the date of the public hearing upon 
receipt of recommendation. 
 
 
 
ITEM NO. REQUEST   COMMISSION ACTION COMMENT 
    
A-1-13  Proposed annexation from County         Recommended Approval  Quasi-Judicial 
  Industrial to City C-17 & R-12 
  Applicant:  Verdis 
  Location:  3528 W. Seltice Way 

 
In order to satisfy the mandatory 15-day notice requirement, the next recommended hearing date will be  
JUNE 18, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



To:      City Council                                                         
Date:   May 15, 2013 
From:  Kathy Lewis, Deputy City Clerk                                      
Re:      FIREWORKS STANDS 2013                                    
 
The following vendors are requesting approval to sell Fireworks at stands in the 
City of Coeur d'Alene from 8:00 am on June 23rd until 10 pm on July 5th.  

  Location Vendor / Address Distributor  
1 Walgreen's 

335 West Appleway 
Coeur d'Alene, ID 83815 

Journey- Troy Carpenter  
2900 N Government Way #302 
Coeur d'Alene ID 83815 

TNT Fireworks 

2 Albertson's 
1223 Government Way 
Coeur d'Alene, ID 83814 

Andy Flournoy 
22310 E Inlet Dr Apt #9 
Liberty Lake, WA 99019 

TNT Fireworks  

3 Super One Foods  
305 West Kathleen Avenue 
Coeur d Alene, ID 83815 

 Mary Quinn  
251 Pinecrest Loop 
Sandpoint, ID 83864  

TNT Fireworks 

4 Goodwill Store 
1212 North Fourth St 
Coeur d'Alene, Id 83814 

Linda Morgan 
16151 North Marble Lane 
Hayden, ID 83835 

TNT Fireworks  

5 Safeway #295 
1001 North Fourth Street 
Coeur d'Alene, Id 83814  

Candice Berlin 
2639 Blueberry Circle 
Hayden ID83835  

TNT Fireworks 

6 Fred Meyer 
560 West Kathleen Avenue 
Coeur d'Alene, ID 83815 

Bryan Howell/Journey Church  
303 East Black Hawk Dr 
Spokane WA 99208  

TNT Fireworks 

7 Safeway #1470 
121 Neider Avenue 
Coeur d'Alene, ID 83815 

Bryan Howell/ Journey Church  
303 East Black Hawk Dr 
Spokane WA 99208   

TNT Fireworks 
 

8. K Mart 
201 West Neider 
Coeur d ALene, ID 83815  

Hillyard Festival / Martin Phanco 
2513 East Joseph 
Spokane WA 99208  

TNT Fireworks  

9.   Runge Furniture 
Spokane Street 
Coeur d'Alene, ID 83814 

Big Boom Fireworks 
8505 Peach Lane 
Missoula MT 59808   

Fox Marketing 

 



ANNOUNCEMENTS 



OTHER COMMITTEE MINUTES 
(Requiring Council Action) 



F:\MuniServices\Council Packets\May 21, 2013\GSMinutes 051313.doc  Page 1 of 6 

May 13, 2013 
GENERAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 
12:00 p.m., Library Community Room 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS  STAFF PRESENT 
Mike Kennedy, Chairperson ABSENT  Jon Ingalls, Deputy City Administrator   
Ron Edinger, acting Chairperson Steve Anthony, Recreation Director 
Steve Adams Dave Yadon, Planning Director 
 Capt. Steve Childers, PD  
CITIZENS PRESENT Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
Charles Buck, University of Idaho Mike Gridley, City Attorney 
Steve Roberge, District Manager, Waste Management  Wendy Gabriel, City Administrator 
Tom Hasslinger, CdA Press Juanita Knight, Senior Legal Assistant  
 Chief Wayne Longo, PD  
 Lt. Bill McLeod, PD  
 Sid Fredrickson, Waste Water Superintendent  
 Wes Somerton, Chief Criminal Deputy City Attorney 
 Troy Tymesen, Finance Director  
 
Item 1.  Request for Removal of Alley Garbage Service Between Melrose Ave. and Medina St., 
  North of Emma Ave.  
(Agenda) 
 
Jon Ingalls, Deputy City Administrator, presented a request from Waste Management to eliminate alley garbage 
collection for a one block section of alley between Melrose and Median Streets, north of Emma Avenue, due to 
safety concerns.  The area is in transition as a medical campus.  Mr. Ingalls said he’s been up and looked at the 
area and staff recommends approval of the request.   
 
Steve Roberge, District Mangers of Waste Management, stated once this is approved they will notify the 
homeowners two weeks in a row prior to making the change.    
 
MOTION: by Councilman Adams, seconded by Councilman Edinger, to recommend that Council 
authorize the request to eliminate alley garbage collection for a one block section of alley between 
Melrose and Medina Streets, north of Emma Avenue.  
 
 
Item 2.  Agreement with Jennifer Corio for Round-About Art at 4th Street and Kathleen Avenue.  
(Resolution No. 13-031) 
 
Steve Anthony, Recreation Director, presented a request from the Arts Commission to accept the proposal of 
Jennifer Corio for the sculpture Umbrellas Gracilis in the amount of $28,000.00 for the placement of public art 
on the roundabout at 4th Street and Kathleen Avenue.  Mr. Anthony presented a maquette model and explained 
how the art piece would appear at the roundabout and how they came about recommending this piece.      
 
MOTION: by Councilman Adams seconded, by Councilman Edinger, to recommend that Council 
adopt Resolution No. 13-031 approving the Personal Services Agreement with Jennifer Corio for 
Creation and Installation of Public art on 4th Street and Kathleen Avenue roundabout.   
 
 



F:\MuniServices\Council Packets\May 21, 2013\GSMinutes 051313.doc  Page 2 of 6 

Item 3.   Review of Design Review Fees.  
(Agenda) 
 
Dave Yadon, Planning, Director, brought forth the Council’s request to reconsider applying an application fee 
for projects in the C-17 and C-17L Zoning Districts that require review by the Design Review Commission. Mr. 
Yadon explained in his staff report that in April 2010 the City Council approved a set of design guidelines that 
applied to C-17 and C-17L Zoning Districts. As a part of that approval, it was established that any project larger 
than 50,000 square feet or located on a site 5 acres or larger or with more than 2 design departures would be 
required to go through the Design Review Commission approval process.  Following that action the Council 
determined that they would not establish a fee for this process for this expanded class of design review projects at 
that time but would revisit the issue in 3 years. Mr. Yadon further explained since adoption, one project has 
triggered the threshold requiring the Design Review Commission process. The application cost for design review in 
the Downtown Core and surrounding infill zoning districts is $100 with no fee for minor alteration review.  Appeals 
are $200.  The actual planning department cost of the process in 2008 was approximately $515. 
 
Councilman Adams said he is confused by the difference between the $100 fee and the $515 cost.  Mr. Yadon 
explained at the time that the fee was established for design review, the council wanted to have the cost of going 
through the process as low as possible. Some nominal fee that would cover a base cost, perhaps of some of the 
notification costs and things of that nature. Mr. Yadon’s sense of the council’s thoughts were that to charge the 
entire amount of $515 would be a burden on developers and the public.  
 
Councilman Edinger asked Mr. Yadon to explain the $515 costs.  Mr. Yadon stated it was a standard practice of 
evaluating staff time that goes into reviewing  and administrating the process of the design review application. 
From the time it comes in, the meetings with applicants, meetings with design review commission, the 
preparation of the staff report, mailings, posting notices, publications, etc., the $515 would covers those costs.   
 
Councilman Edinger clarified that if this is approved, the City would need to have a public hearing. Mr. Yadon 
said yes, if an application fee is approved, a public hearing would be needed to establish whatever fee the 
Council decides on.  
 
MOTION: by Councilman Adams, seconded by Councilman Edinger, to recommend that Council 
consider applying an application fee for projects in the C-17 and C-17L Zoning Districts that 
require review by the Design Review Commission.   
 
 
Item 4.   Agreement with Shaffer Towing & Recovery as the City’s single source-towing provider.  
(CC Resolution No. 13-029) 
 
Capt. Steve Childers, Police Department, is asking for Authorization to extend the contract with Schaffer’s 
Towing for two more years, the last of their 2-year extensions, as the City’s single source-towing provider.  
Capt. Childers explained in his staff report that Prior to August 2002, the City of Coeur d’Alene had employed a 
Rotational Tow Truck Policy to address the vehicle towing needs for the City.  However, during August 2002 
the City of Coeur d’Alene changed their policy and a single source tow provider was selected. On average, the 
City of Coeur d’Alene dispatches approximately 1100 vehicle tows per year ranging from vehicles involved in 
accidents to abandoned vehicles located on public and private property.  It has been determined that a single 
source tow provider is more economical and efficient for the City of Coeur d’Alene. Schaffer’s Towing and 
Recovery have met our requirements and are willing to provide our Agency and community with the same level 
of professionalism we have received for the past several years as our single source tow provider. Not only do 
they meet our requirements, they have provided a competitive towing fee scale that is both beneficial to the City 
as well as the motorist.  Capt. Childers noted that after this 2 years is up, they will be able to open up the option 
for other towing companies to become their towing provider.  Currently, the contract has a $30 per day storage 



F:\MuniServices\Council Packets\May 21, 2013\GSMinutes 051313.doc  Page 3 of 6 

fee. Schaffer’s would like to increase that fee to $35 a day, which would bring the City in line with all other 
persons charged to have a vehicle stored at the facility.  Otherwise, the contact remains the same.     
 
MOTION: by Councilman Adams, seconded by Councilman Edinger, to recommend that Council 
adopt Resolution No. 13-029 approving the Addendum to the Professional Services Contract with 
Schaffer’s Towing and Recovery.  
 
 
Item 5.   Amendment to Municipal Code Chapter 5.08: allowance of sale of alcohol on Memorial 
  Day and Thanksgiving Day, and clarification of election day sale allowance.  
(CB 13-1010) 
 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk, stated this is mostly a housekeeping amendment to align city code with state code.  
Mrs. McLeod said State Statute Title 23, Chapter 9, Section 23-927 (1) a. begins by prohibiting the sale of 
liquor on Sundays, Memorial Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas from 1 o’clock a.m. to 10 o’clock a.m. the 
following day.  Section (2) states that a County or City may however, by ordinance, allow the sale of liquor by 
the drink on a Sunday, Memorial Day, and thanksgiving Day and may also extend until 2 o’clock a.m. the sale 
of liquor by the drink.     
 
Mrs. McLeod also stated that in 2008, the State Statute 23-929 Section 1-c was repealed which prohibited the 
sale of liquor on general or primary election days until the time when the polls are closed.  The sale of liquor on 
City election days was not formerly prohibited. The City ordinance do not currently reflect this change which 
allows the sale of liquor on any election day.  Adding verbiage to the City’s code to clarify this will reduce 
confusion.  
 
MOTION: by Councilman Adams, seconded by Councilman Edinger, to recommend that Council 
adopt CB 13-1010 amending M.C. Section 5.08.140 Alcohol – Hours of Sale, allowing the sale of 
liquor on Memorial Day, Thanksgiving Day, Election Day, Sundays, and indicate licensees have the 
authority to serve until 2 o’clock a.m., but prohibit the sale of liquor on Christmas Day.   
 
 
Item 6.  Amendment to Municipal Code Section 4.25.030: allowance of special permits for use of 
alcohol within specific city owned properties. 
(CB 13-1009) 
 
Mike Gridley, City Attorney, stated the intent is to modify city code as we have done with Riverstone and most 
recently the Jewett House to allow alcohol at the City Park and McEuen park for specific events and by permit 
only.  This amendment adds the City Park and McEuen Park as well as clarify some language that had been 
garbled when it was previously amended.   
 
Councilman Edinger asked if this is going to open a big can of worms.  Mr. Gridley said the events at 
Riverstone have been very well controlled.  This amendment does not allow anyone, anywhere to have alcohol 
in the parks. It is a specific permit for a specific events. The exception for the prohibition of alcohol on city 
property only list Riverstone, Jewett House, and now the City and McEuen Parks. No other park would allow 
alcohol.  
 



F:\MuniServices\Council Packets\May 21, 2013\GSMinutes 051313.doc  Page 4 of 6 

Councilman Adams said he is fine with this request. The test model was Riverstone and it has proved to be 
successful.  
 
Mr. Gridley said the Council can always repeal this, should it not work out.    
 
MOTION: by Councilman Adams, seconded by Councilman Edinger, to recommend that Council 
adopt CB 13-1009 amending M.C. Section 4.25.030 Alcohol on Public Property, to allow alcohol to 
be served at City Park and McEuen Park by permit only.   
 
 
Item 7.   Request for Approval of a Grant for Two Patrol Positions.  
(Agenda) 
 
Capt. Steve Childers, PD, explained the Police Department has an opportunity to receive COPS grant funding 
that would allow them to hire two additional police officers.  He noted the PD lost two positions when the 
economy started to falter a couple of years ago. The match would be about a 53% fund for 3 years with the City 
picking up 47%. Capt. Childers explained the cost breakdown.  
 
Chief Longo, PD, said this is similar to the grant they received a few years ago when they had 3 positions from 
that that have since been absorbed into the City’s budget.  This go-round the grant money is less.  The COPS 
money is available every years but its slowly decreasing from the 100% rate they once paid.     
 
Councilman Edinger clarified this is a 3 year grant and the city would pick up the full cost on the 4th year.  Capt. 
Childers stated that is correct.     
 
Councilman Adams stated he’s not opposed to additional officers or increased safety but is opposed to the 
funding method, as he has been in the past.  
 
Item forwarded to the full City Council without recommendation.  
 
 
Item 8.  City Participation in CDA 2030 Community Visioning Process. 
(Agenda) 
 
Mike Gridley, City Attorney, explained in his staff report that in 2000 the City sponsored a community 
visioning process called CDA 2020.  The process asked citizens to share their vision for the Coeur d’Alene area 
for the next 20 years.  The process resulted in a document that established the community’s vision, values and 
goals. The document helped provide a community focus and framework for achieving community goals. Public 
meetings held in February and April of this year indicate that there is strong community support to create a new 
vision statement that would reflect the community’s vision for the future.  An ad hoc Community Advisory 
Committee (CAC) has been enlisted to gauge interest and to help steer the project (see attached list of CAC 
members).  From this Committee a Project Coordination Group (PCG) led by Dr. Charles Buck from the 
University of Idaho, has stepped forward to organize the visioning process and to establish financial and in-kind 
support.  As stated in the Prospectus, the visioning process is anticipated to take 12 -15 months and result in 
concrete action plans to carry out the community’s goals.  A tentative budget of roughly $10,000 per month has 
been established based on the resources needed to conduct an effective, efficient and professional visioning 
process. Although most community visioning projects are financed entirely by city government, the CAC feels 
strongly that the project should not be totally funded by tax supported entities.  The visioning process is a 
community process and it is felt that to make it a success funding should come from the broader community.  
However, because the primary beneficiaries of the results of the visioning process will be the citizens of Coeur 
d’Alene, the PCG has suggested that the City contribute 20% of the budget ($30,000) to the project in addition 



F:\MuniServices\Council Packets\May 21, 2013\GSMinutes 051313.doc  Page 5 of 6 

to providing in-kind support as needed. We currently have pledges or contributions from PCG members of 
approximately $40,000 and we have a goal of having pledges or contributions equal to $100,000 by June 1, 
2013 with the remaining funding to be secured over the next several months. Mr. Gridley added that they’ve 
received pledges/contributions, to date, of approximately $80,000 so things are moving along pretty quickly.     
 
Councilman Edinger asked where the City’s share of the money coming from. Mr. Gridley said he believes one 
of the projects that this process will bring forth is East Sherman. The Council has flagged money in the Planning 
Department to study East Sherman. He believes a better use of that money would be to put it towards this type 
of plan, this year, to see if East Sherman is indeed a priority to the community. In addition, the Legal 
Department has dedicated funds for professional services that is used for legal services that are outside the norm 
of an insurance type claim, i.e, the election lawsuit is an example. We’ve not had a lot of expenses out of that 
budget this year so a couple of thousand dollars from that budget could be utilized. Mr. Gridley said he also 
spoke with Troy Tymesen, Finance Director, who indicated that the City’s overall revenues are up and could 
therefore use that as a little additional funding.  
 
Councilman Adams stated he was the lone dissenter on moving forward with this and he still has those same 
primary objections.  
 
Councilman Edinger asked Dr. Buck if he’d like to make any comments.  Dr. Charles Buck, Associate Vice 
President of the University of Idaho, said the U of I is very excited about this project as they see it as an 
opportunity to also hear from the community in terms of what’s important to them, where they see the 
community going, and they can extrapolate from that in terms of programs, etc. He noted that NIC and LCSC 
are also engaged in this process and have agreed to contribute, not just in-kind, but also some cash on the table. 
So they are committed to moving this forward and trying to make it a process that engages the community 
effectively.      
 
Item forwarded to the full City Council without recommendation.  
 
 
Item 9.  Lease Extension with University of Idaho for the Harbor Center Facility.  
(Agenda) 
 
Wendy Gabriel, City Administrator, asked whether the City Council should approve the extension of the current 
Master Lease Agreement between the Board of Regents of the University of Idaho and the City of Coeur 
d'Alene for the lease of the building and property located at what is commonly referred to as Harbor Center. 
Mrs. Gabriel went on to provide background, as indicated in her staff report, on how the University of Idaho 
ended up at the Harbor Center.  
 
Sid Fredrickson, discussed how the collaboration with the U of I benefits the Waste Water Treatment Plant.  Mr. 
Fredrickson shared the dream of a water resource center which would be primarily a data repository available 
for use, not just by Waste Water, but other entities as well.  He stated we are in a world of constant changing 
water quality standards.  He talked about the various  oxygen depleting contaminants, and said they are now 
looking at pcb’s, and in the future it will be personal care products and pharmaceuticals. All of that means they 
will need to partner up with research facilities.   
 
Dr. Charles Buck, Associate Vice President of the University of Idaho, manages the facilities at harbor center. 
Dr. Buck discussed the benefits of the collaboration with the City of Coeur d'Alene for 30 years to include the 
past 10 years at Harbor Center.  He explained the time at Harbor Center has been characterized by a lot of 
growth in programs and an even tighter relationship with the City and a better understanding of how the 
university can bring its programs and resources to Coeur d'Alene. He said we have a living laboratory on the 
river that can enable us to address research opportunities as well as to provide higher education resources for 



F:\MuniServices\Council Packets\May 21, 2013\GSMinutes 051313.doc  Page 6 of 6 

place bound residents.  Dr. Buck said there are plan on the books with LCSC and with NIC to build a 
collaborative education facility in the higher education campus. That facility would be focused on student 
services and advising as well as class room space for the 3 entities.  We will continue to need the Harbor Center 
building to house the operations in the future. The new facility is part of the growth plan, not a replacement plan 
for Harbor Center.  The facility is on the docket of all 3 institutions for request of state funding. We don’t 
anticipate that will be approved until 2015.   
Dr. Buck went on to discuss the benchmarks included in the General Services packet and some which were 
handed out today.   
Dr. Buck said they have the resources to conduct the research as Mr. Fredrickson spoke of.  He noted that Dr. 
Mark Solomon from Moscow is here 1 day a week.  He is specifically working with stakeholders to identify 
research opportunities in Coeur d'Alene that will bring research dollars, principally from the federal 
government, but also from various agencies as well as foundations…which will bring with it, high paying 
research jobs.   
 
Dr. Buck said they are eternally grateful for their time at Harbor Center.  They have meticulously maintained the 
facility.  With the continuation of the lease, the university will have confidence that they will be here for the 
long term, and the City will have confidence that the university will be here delivering programs, education, and 
research.   
 
Councilman Adams asked Dr. Buck if he understood correctly that it would not be economically feasible for 
them to be in Coeur d'Alene without Harbor Center.  Dr. Buck said that is not correct.  They are committed to 
have a presence in Coeur d'Alene and throughout the state. They will endeavor to have a presence in Coeur 
d'Alene irrespective of this decision. They believe it is very important that they are linked very closely with NIC 
and LCSC.  They intend to stay in Coeur d'Alene, hopefully in Harbor Center, and they respectively request 
Council approve this lease extension.  
 
Councilman Edinger has had 3 grandchildren graduate from the University of Idaho in Moscow and he thinks 
that having UI here, in Harbor Center, has been a great benefit to the citizens of Coeur d'Alene and the 
community itself. He is all in favor of this.  
 
Councilman Adams commented that he is not sold on it.  
 
Wendy asked Councilman Adams if there is there is information that can be brought to the council meeting, that 
was lacking today, that may help sale him. Councilman Adams,  said “no, I doubt it.”   
 
Dr. Buck informed Councilman Adams that he is happy to bring additional information, should it help. 
Councilman Adams replied “thank you.”  
 
Item forwarded to the full City Council without recommendation.  
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:00 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Juanita Knight  
Recording Secretary 















   
 

Resolution No. 13‐030 1 | P a g e  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-030 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
APPROVING THE THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE MASTER LEASE WITH THE REGENTS 
OF THE UNIVERSITY OF IDAHO, FOR PREMISES AT HARBOR CENTER. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Coeur d’Alene and the Regents of the University of Idaho have a 

long-standing mutual interest in and commitment to ensuring that residents of Coeur d’Alene and 
northern Idaho have access to higher education and recognize that collaboration between and among 
the Parties is vital to enhancing such access; 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has approved a Master Lease with the Regents of the 

University of Idaho for leased premises at Harbor Center for educational purposes; 
 
WHEREAS, the Third Amendment to the Master Lease with its attachments is attached 

hereto as Exhibit “1” and is incorporated herein as if set forth fully, and its terms have been 
approved by the City Council; 

 
WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d’Alene and the 

citizens thereof to approve said Third Amendment to the Master Lease;  NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d’Alene that the 

City approve the Third Amendment to the Master Lease with the Regents of the University of Idaho 
as set forth in Exhibit “1”. 

 
DATED, this 21st day of May, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
                                   _____________________________ 
                                   Sandi Bloem, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
     
 
 
 



   
 

Resolution No. 13‐030 2 | P a g e  
 

Motion by _______________, Seconded by ________________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 

ROLL CALL: 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER   GOOKIN  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER GOODLANDER  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER  KENNEDY  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 
 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 
 



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



RE: Resolution No. 13-030



Resolution No. 13‐030 1 | P a g e   E X H I B I T   “ 1 ”  

 THIRD AMENDMENT TO MASTER LEASE 
 

This Master Lease Amendment (Third Amendment) is made by and between the City of 
Coeur d’Alene, a municipal corporation (“Landlord”) and the Board of Regents of the University 
of Idaho, a state educational institution and body politic and corporate organized and existing 
under the constitution and laws of the State of Idaho (Tenant).  This Amendment shall revise the 
Master Lease (attached as Exhibit 1) of May 13, 2002, and shall become effective upon July 1, 
2013. 

   
 WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into a Master Lease on May 13, 2002 for a term 
of five (5) consecutive years.  
 
 WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into an Amendment to Master Lease effective 
upon June 1, 2007, extending the term of the original Master Lease through June 30, 2010.  
 
 WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into a Second Amendment to Master Lease 
effective upon July 1, 2009, extending the term of the original Master Lease through June 30, 2013.  
 

WHEREAS, Section 5.2 of said Master Lease states that “Landlord and Tenant agree to 
continue to negotiate in good faith to enter into an agreement, by which Tenant may purchase the 
Leased Premises from the Landlord and the Landlord may convey the Leased Premises to the 
Tenant in approximately five years, at the expiration of this Lease.” 

 
WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant have continued to negotiate in good faith in this regard, 

but due to circumstances related to the mutual interests of both parties, purchase and conveyance of 
the property has not yet occurred and both parties wish to extend the terms of the Master Lease in 
accordance with this Third Amendment. 
 
 Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, Landlord 
and Tenant agree as follows: 
 

A. Section1.3 “Leased Premises” is hereby amended to replace Schedule I (the 
Premises legal description) and Exhibit A (the graphic depiction of the Premises) with a new exhibit 
attached to this Third Amendment as “Exhibit A Third Amendment” (showing the amended graphic 
depiction for Leased Premises). 
 

B. Section 2 “Term” of the Master Lease is hereby amended to extend the term 
through June 30, 2028.  Tenant may at any time, but not sooner than at least thirty days after 
written notice to Landlord, terminate this Master Lease early and vacate the Leased Premises.  In 
the event of early termination by Tenant, no subtenants (as permitted by Section 9 of this Master 
Lease) shall be permitted by Tenant to remain on the Leased Premises after such early 
termination date, unless Landlord agrees to written assignment of any existing sublease to 
Landlord.  

 
C. Section 3 “Rent” of the Master Lease is hereby deleted and replaced with the 

following new Section 3 and Exhibit B Third Amendment: 



Resolution No. 13‐030 2 | P a g e   E X H I B I T   “ 1 ”  

 
“3.  Rent. Tenant shall make a single payment of $3600 to Landlord on or before 
August 1, 2013.  As additional consideration for Tenant’s use of Leased Premises, 
Landlord has established “Expectations for deliverables for long term lease of the Harbor 
Center by the University of Idaho” (attached as “Exhibit B Third Amendment” to this 
Master Lease).” 
 
D. Section 5 “Further Agreements” and Exhibits B, C, and D are hereby deleted and 

replaced with the following new Section 5: 
 
“5.  Landlord’s Representation of Encumbrances.  Landlord represents to Tenant that, 
to Landlord’s knowledge, title to the Leased Premises is free and clear of all 
encumbrances, easements, assessments, restrictions, tenancies (excluding tenancies 
executed by Tenant and approved by Landlord), and other exceptions to title, except the 
1995 Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, with such latter exception being acknowledged 
by Tenant as a condition of the Leased Premises.”         
 
E. Section 6.1 of the Master Lease is hereby deleted and replaced with the following 

new Section 6.1: 
 

“6.1 Subject to the covenants and representations herein, Tenant accepts the Leased 
Premises in “as is” condition. Tenant shall reasonably clean and maintain (including 
snow removal) the Leased Premises in a safe and attractive condition.  Tenant shall not 
commit waste on the Leased Premises and shall perform routine maintenance and repair 
of Leased Premises to the extent necessary to continue operations as permitted herein.  
However, if in the sole determination of Tenant any anticipated future repair or 
maintenance costs to the Leased Premises or its road access (including any portion of that 
access located outside the Leased Premises) are deemed excessive for its continued use of 
the Leased Premises, Tenant shall notify Landlord of the needed repair, maintenance or 
replacement work required to permit continued occupation and use, and Tenant shall 
provide Landlord an estimate of cost to repair, maintain or replace.  Upon such written 
notification from Tenant, Landlord shall within thirty days notify Tenant of Landlord’s 
willingness to perform such requested work (and provide Tenant a reasonable timeline 
for its completion), or alternatively Landlord may notify Tenant that Landlord will not 
perform such requested work, and the Lease shall be terminated in ten days unless Tenant 
preemptively responds in writing to Landlord declaring Tenant’s intent to complete such 
necessary work at Tenant’s expense.    
 
F. Section 10.1 of the Master lease is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentences at the end of the existing Section 10.1: 
 
“In the event Landlord asserts Tenant has defaulted on those “expectations and 
deliverables” as prescribed in Exhibit B Third Amendment, Tenant shall have one year 
instead of ninety days to demonstrate performance regarding the specific benchmark(s) 
cited by Landlord in writing as not being performed by Tenant.  If such performance or 
good faith and best effort to perform has not been demonstrated to the satisfaction of 



Resolution No. 13‐030 3 | P a g e   E X H I B I T   “ 1 ”  

Landlord after one year, the subsequent provisions of this Section shall be applied to 
resolve the matter.” 
 
G.   Section 13 “Recording of Master Lease” is hereby deleted and replaced with the 

following new Section 13: 
 
“13.  Recording of Master Lease and its Third Amendment.  This Lease and Third 
Amendment may be recorded by either party without further permission or 
acknowledgement from the other party.  In the event either party chooses to record, it 
shall pay any applicable costs or fees for recording at its sole expense and it shall provide 
the other party a certified copy of the recorded document”.   
  
H.  If there is any conflict between the terms and provisions of this Third Amendment 

and the terms and provisions of the Master Lease, the terms and provisions of this Third 
Amendment shall govern.  Except as specifically set forth herein, all other provisions of the Master 
Lease shall remain in full force and effect and be binding upon the Parties in accordance with the 
terms therein. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Third Amendment on the 
date(s) set forth below. 
 
City of Coeur d’Alene    Board of Regents of the    

   University of Idaho 
 
________________________    ________________________ 
  Sandi Bloem, Mayor     Ronald E Smith, Vice-President 
       Finance & Administration 
 
___________________________   ________________________        
Date       Date 
 
 
Attest: ______________________ 
  Renata McLeod, City Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 13‐030 4 | P a g e   E X H I B I T   “ 1 ”  

Exhibit A Third Amendment 

 
 



Resolution No. 13‐030 5 | P a g e   E X H I B I T   “ 1 ”  

Exhibit B  
Third Amendment 

 
Expectations and deliverables for long term lease of Harbor Center by the University of Idaho 

 
The University of Idaho (“UI”) and the City of Coeur d’Alene (“CDA”); hereafter referred to 

as the “Parties”) have a long‐standing, strong and mutual interest in and commitment to ensuring 
that residents of CDA and northern Idaho have access to higher education and recognize that 
collaboration is key to enhancing such access. Similarly, the Parties wish to foster economic 
development and to enrich the community experience with a mutually beneficial partnership.  

The parties, in the spirit of collaboration and cooperation that has characterized the 
Parties’ relationship over the years, set forth the following Benchmarks as goals and objectives to 
be achieved by UI for the current lease term: 

Education Benchmarks 
1. Continue to make available one enrollment in Executive Masters of Business 

Administration (EMBA) program for a city employee up to every other year ($19,000/yr) 

2. Continue to offer  GIS certificate program training to a city employee, up to one each year 

(~$2200/yr) 

3. Offer non‐profit management certificate training for up to two city employees each year 

(up to $500/yr) 

4. Demonstrate good faith effort to make available and market additional programs in CDA 

with on‐line and both asynchronous and synchronous video delivery modes,  including: 

a. Masters of Natural Resources 

b. MS and BS in Environmental Science 

c. MS/MA in Organizational Dynamics 

d. BS in Industrial Technology/Engineering 

e. BA and/or MA in Tourism and Recreation Management 

f. MS in Fire Ecology 

g. Professional Science Masters 

h. Bachelors in Sustainability Studies  

i. Certificate and degree programs for Waste Water Treatment Operators 

j. Other programs in response to community needs and as  possible for UI  

5. Continue good faith effort to increase enrollment each year and to increase number of 

graduates and certificate holders each year in alignment with Idaho goals to achieve 60% 

of adults between the ages of 24 and 35 with a post high school degree or certificate by 

2020 



Resolution No. 13‐030 6 | P a g e   E X H I B I T   “ 1 ”  

Community Service Benchmarks 
1. Devote resources to continued development of Community Water Resource Center in the 

Harbor Center building providing an effective outlet for city and governmental agency 

community outreach 

2. Create active portal to engage UI expertise, resources, and facilities for CDA programs and 

initiatives as needed and appropriate 

3. Actively participate in the realization of the master plan for the Higher Education Campus 

via partnering with North Idaho College and other higher education institutions 

4. Encourage hosting of UI cultural and athletic programs in CDA  

5. Provide annual report of relevant activity to CDA  

Research Benchmarks 
1. Actively engage with CDA to support of grant proposals of interest for the City 

2. Continue good faith efforts to obtain research grants and to build additional research 

capacity in CDA 

3. Continue to work with main campus and other institutions and agencies to focus and 

house active research projects in CDA 

4. Make available research laboratory space and capabilities as possible for school and 

community needs 

Facilities Benchmarks 
1. Encourage State and private investment in Collaborative Education Facility at the Higher 

Education Campus  

2. Actively participate with local and regional groups to expand University/higher education 

facilities in CDA 

 



 1

GENERAL SERVICE 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: May 13, 2013 
FROM: Jon Ingalls, Deputy Administrator   
 
 
SUBJECT: ALLEY GARBAGE SERVICE – ONE BLOCK SECTION  
 
 
DECISION POINT: 
Would the City Council concur with Waste Management’s request to eliminate alley garbage 
collection for a one block section of alley between Melrose and Medina Streets north of 
Emma Avenue due to safety concerns?   
 
HISTORY: 
Typically garbage is collected from the alleys in areas of the city where alleys are present.  
Waste Management has requested that consideration be given to the elimination of alley 
garbage pick-up for a one block section of alley north of Emma Avenue in an area that is in 
transition and changing as the medical campus expands.   Elimination of alley service in this 
alley would be due to safety concerns as outlined in the attached memorandum from Waste 
Management .  Attached is an email from Steve Roberge, District Manager of Waste 
Management requesting the City Council’s consideration of this matter.   
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
There would be no financial impact as a result of this decision.   
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS: 
Requiring street pick up of garbage from this one block section of alley would affect (5) 
homes.  All of these customers have driveways leading to the street.  Waste Management 
would post notices at their doors two weeks prior to this change.   

 
DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION: 
That the City Council support Waste Management’s request.   
 
 
 
Attachment:   (1) Memorandum of 4/22/13 from Waste Management  
  (2) Photos  







STAFF REPORT 
 

DATE:   May 8, 2013 
 
TO:  General Services Committee 
 
FROM:   Steve Anthony, Arts Commission Liaison 
 
SUBJECT:    Art Selections for Roundabouts 4th and Kathleen 

 
Decision Point: 
The Coeur d’Alene Arts commission requests the General Service Committee 
recommend that the City Council accept the proposal of Jennifer Chorio & Dave Frei for 
the sculpture Umbrellas Gracilis in the amount $28,000.00.   
 
History: 
The Arts Commission has identified through the Master Plan 4th and Kathleen for the 
placement of public art.  A selection committee reviewed over 30 initial proposals and 
narrowed them down to 5 artists who prepared maquettes for the committee.  The 
maquettes were put on display at the Coeur d’Alene Library and comments were 
solicited.  After further discussion, the committee selected the art piece by the artists 
named in the previous paragraph.   
 
Financial Analysis:   The Arts Commission has budgeted for the placement of art in city-
wide roundabouts.  This particular Roundabout had a budget of $30,000 the proposed 
contract amount is $28,000.  The projected is being funded out to the City’s 1% Public  
Art fund.  The funds are dedicated funds and can only be used for Public Art. 
 
Performance Analysis:   
Once the contract is awarded to Ms. Chorio, construction will begin in June with a target 
installation date of September 17, 2013.  The roundabouts have been identified in the 
Arts Master plan as possible locations for art.   With the approval of this project the city 
will have now placed art pieces in 5 of the 6 roundabouts in the city. 
 
Decision Point: 
That the General Services committee recommends that the City Council authorize that 
contract be awarded to Jennifer Corio. 

 
 



  
 

Resolution No. 13‐031 1 | P a g e  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-031 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
APPROVING A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH JENNIFER CORIO FOR 
CREATION AND INSTALLATION OF PUBLIC ART AT 4TH STREET AND KATHLEEN 
AVENUE ROUNDABOUT. 
         

WHEREAS, the General Services Committee of the City of Coeur d'Alene has recommended 
that the City of Coeur d'Alene enter into Personal Services Agreement with Jennifer Corio, pursuant 
to terms and conditions set forth in an agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "1" 
and by reference made a part hereof; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 
citizens thereof to enter into such agreement; NOW, THEREFORE, 
  

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the 
City enter into a Personal Services Agreement with Jennifer Corio, in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit "1" and incorporated herein by reference with the provision that the Mayor, City 
Administrator, and City Attorney are hereby authorized to modify said agreement to the extent the 
substantive provisions of the agreement remain intact. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby 
authorized to execute such agreement on  behalf of the City. 
 

DATED this 21st day of May, 2013.   
 
 
 
 
                                   _____________________________ 
                                   Sandi Bloem, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
 

Resolution No. 13‐031 2 | P a g e  
 

 
 
     Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
     ROLL CALL: 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER GOODLANDER Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER KENNEDY  Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS   Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 



 

Resolution No. 13‐031 1 | P a g e   E X H I B I T   “ 1 ”  
   

PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Between 

JENNIFER CORIO 

And 

THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE 

for 

CREATION AND INSTALLATION OF PUBLIC ART 

4TH STREET & KATHLEEN AVENUE ROUNDABOUT 

 
THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this 21st day of May, 2013, between the CITY 

OF COEUR D'ALENE, Kootenai County, Idaho, a municipal corporation and political subdivision 
of the state of Idaho, hereinafter referred to as the "City," and JENNIFER CORIO, d/b/a COBALT 
DESIGNWORKS, LLC, 1930 D Street, Vancouver, WA 98663, hereinafter referred to as the 
"Artist," 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

Section 1. Employment of the Artist.  The City hereby agrees to engage the Artist to 
perform the services for design, construction, placement, installation and installation supervision of 
the exterior public art at 4th Street and Kathleen Ave. Roundabout, as hereinafter set forth in Artist’s 
Proposal attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A.”  

 
Section 2. Personnel. 

 
 A. The Artist represents that Artist will perform the services under this contract 

and shall not be an employee of the City. 
 

 B. All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the Artist.   
 

Section 3. Time of Performance. The services of the Artist shall commence upon 
execution of this contract by the Mayor and shall be completed within 6 months of this contract being 
executed.  A specific date of installation shall be coordinated by the Artist with the City’s Recreation 
Director.    

 
Section 4. Compensation. 

 
A. Subject to the provisions of this agreement, the City shall pay the Artist a 
total of Twenty Eight Thousand Dollars and No/100’s ($28,000.00) for services, 
payable, upon receipt of Artist invoice, as follows: 

 
1. $12,000 at the start of the project 
2. $12,000 at mid-construction 
3. $  4,000 thirty (30) days after installation of the art object 

 



 

Resolution No. 13‐031 2 | P a g e   E X H I B I T   “ 1 ”  
   

B. Except as otherwise provided in this agreement, the City shall not provide any 
additional compensation, payment, use of facilities, service or other things of value to 
the Artist in connection with performance of contract duties. 

   
Section 5.     Assignability. The Artist shall not delegate duties or otherwise subcontract 

work or services under this contract, except for installation and landscaping as described in the 
Artist’s Proposal.  The Artist may use other individuals working under her supervision to assist him 
in the construction and the installation of the public art object.   
       
 Section 6.     Interest of the Artist.  The Artists covenants that it presently has no interest 
and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree 
with the performance of services required to be performed under this contract. 
 
      Section 7.     Relationship of the Parties.  The Artist shall perform her obligations 
hereunder as an independent contractor of the City.  The City may administer this contract and 
monitor the Artist's compliance with this agreement but shall not supervise or otherwise direct the 
Artist except to provide recommendations and to provide approvals pursuant to this agreement. 
 
 Section 8.     Hold Harmless.    Artist shall furnish and install barriers to prevent accidents 
while installing the public art object on the site and shall indemnify, defend and hold the city 
harmless from all claims for injury to person or property resulting from the Artist’s actions or 
omissions in performance of this agreement. 

 
Section 9.   Warranties. 

 
A. The Artist shall not be responsible for the maintenance of the public art object 
or for any damages resulting from the City’s failure to maintain the public art object 
nor from any causes beyond the control of the Artist. 

   
B. The Artist shall obtain from the supplier and provide to the City a warranty 
on materials associated with the public art. 

 
  Section 10.   Ownership. The City shall maintain ownership and all rights to the public 
art object once it is completed and installed.  However, the City agrees it will include the name of the 
artists and the name of the public art object in any publication, depiction or rendering of the public 
art object that the City allows. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this agreement is executed the day and year first written above. 

 
CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE     ARTIST  

  
____________________________   ______________________________  
Sandi Bloem, Mayor                  Jennifer Corio,  

d/b/a Cobalt Designworks, LLC                                      
 
ATTEST:                      
 
_____________________________     
Renata McLeod, City Clerk  



 

Resolution No. 13‐031 3 | P a g e   E X H I B I T   “ 1 ”  
   

 
***************** 

 
STATE OF IDAHO   ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this ____ day of May, 2013, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Sandi 
Bloem and Renata McLeod, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City 
of Coeur d'Alene that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that said City of 
Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
                                     
                              Notary Public for Idaho 
                              Residing at       
                               My Commission expires:     

 
 
 

***************** 
 
STATE OF _______________) 
                       ) ss. 
County of    ) 
 
     On this ______ day of May, 2013, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Jennifer 
Corio, known to me to be the ____________________of Cobalt Designworks, LLC. and the person 
who executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said limited liability company and acknowledged 
to me that such limited liability company executed the same.  
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day and 
year in this certificate first above written. 
 
                                          
                              Notary Public for         
                              Residing at           
                              My Commission expires:       



Resolution No. 13-031 Exhibit "1-A"



Resolution No. 13-031 Exhibit "1-A"



Resolution No. 13-031 Exhibit "1-A"



Resolution No. 13-031 Exhibit "1-A"



DATE:    May 13, 2013 
 
TO:  General Services Committee 
 
FROM:  Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Design Review Application Fees For C-17 & C-17L Zoning Districts 
 
Decision Point: To determine if the City Council should consider applying an 
application fee for projects in the C-17 & C-17L Zoning Districts that require review by the 
Design Review Commission. 
 
Background:  In April 2010 the City Council approved a set of design guidelines 
that applied to C-17 and C-17L Zoning Districts. As a part of that approval, it was 
established that any project larger than 50,000 square feet or located on a site 5 acres or 
larger or with more than 2 design departures would be required to go through the Design 
Review Commission approval process.  
 
Following that action the Council determined that they would not establish a fee for this 
process for this expanded class of design review projects at that time but would revisit the 
issue in 3 years. The following is an excerpt from the minutes of that meeting: 
 

April 20, 2010  CC public hearing on applying the design review fee 
Motion by Kennedy, seconded by McEvers to deny Resolution 10-014.   

 
DISCUSSION: Councilman McEvers requested that the Council approve waiving the fee 
for three years for the C-17 and C-17L zoning districts.  Councilman Edinger asked if 
Councilman McEvers request is doable.  City Planning Director noted that the Council 
could do whatever they wish; however, this would create a difference between the 
applicants that would be utilizing the same services of the Design Review Commission.  
Councilman Edinger asked if the City could be sued for discriminating if they chose to 
waive the fees.  Mayor Bloem commented that the Design Guidelines are not the same 
for the C-17 and C-17L as for the Downtown or Infill districts.  City Attorney Mike Gridley 
responded to Councilman Edinger’s concern about being sued in that it depends but he 
would not worry about being sued as you can charge different fees for different 
circumstances.  

 
Performance Analysis: 
Since adoption, one project has triggered the threshold requiring the Design Review 
Commission process. 
 
The application cost for design review in the Downtown Core and surrounding infill zoning 
districts is $100 with no fee for minor alteration review. Appeals are $200. The actual 
planning department cost of the process in 2008 was approximately $515. 
 
A public hearing would be necessary if the council elects to apply a fee to these 
applications,  
 
Decision Point Recommendation: Consider applying an application fee for projects in 
the C-17 & C-17L Zoning Districts that require review by the Design Review Commission. 
 









   
 

Page 1   

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 13-1010 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF COEUR 
D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, AMENDING 5.08.140 TO AUTHORIZE SALES OF 
LIQUOR  BY THE DRINK ON MEMORIAL DAY, THANKSGIVING, SUNDAYS AND DAILY 
UNTIL 2:00 A.M.; PROVIDING REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, after recommendation by the General Services Committee, it is deemed by the 
Mayor and City Council to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene that said amendments 
be adopted; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene: 
 
SECTION 1. That Coeur d'Alene Municipal Code Section 5.08.140 is amended to read as follows: 
 
5.08.140: DAYS AND HOURS OF SALE:  

 

A.   No person licensed by the municipality shall sell or serve in the place of business for which he has taken 
out a license any beer during hours prohibited by state law or county ordinance 

B.   Any patron present on the licensed premises after the sale of beer has stopped as provided in subsection A 
of this section shall have a reasonable time, not to exceed thirty (30) minutes, to consume any beverage 
already served. 

C.   As authorized by I.C. 23-927(2), a person licensed by the municipality may sell or serve liquor on 
Memorial Day, Thanksgiving, Sundays and daily until 2:00 a.m.  Sales of liquor on Christmas day is 
prohibited by I.C. 23-927   

 
SECTION 2.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  Neither the adoption of this ordinance nor the repeal of any ordinance shall, in any 
manner, affect the prosecution for violation of such ordinance committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance or be construed as a waiver of any license or penalty due under any such ordinance 
or in any manner affect the validity of any action heretofore taken by the City of Coeur d'Alene City 
Council or the validity of any such action to be taken upon matters pending before the City Council 
on the effective date of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 4.  The provisions of this ordinance are severable and if any provision, clause, sentence, 
subsection, word or part thereof is held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional or inapplicable to any 



   
 

Page 2   

person or circumstance, such illegality, invalidity or unconstitutionality or inapplicability shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions, clauses, sentences, subsections, words or parts of 
this ordinance or their application to other persons or circumstances.  It is hereby declared to be the 
legislative intent that this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal, invalid or 
unconstitutional provision, clause sentence, subsection, word, or part had not been included therein, 
and if such person or circumstance to which the ordinance or part thereof is held inapplicable had 
been specifically exempt therefrom.   
 
SECTION 5.  After its passage and adoption, a summary of this Ordinance, under the provisions 
of the Idaho Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City of Coeur 
d'Alene, and upon such publication shall be in full force and effect.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED, ADOPTED and SIGNED this 21st day of May, 2013.  
 
 
 
 
                                   ________________________________ 
                                   Sandi Bloem, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 



   
 

Page 1 

SUMMARY OF COEUR D’ALENE ORDINANCE  NO. ______ 
AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 5.08.140 - HOURS OF SALE 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF COEUR 

D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, AMENDING 5.08.140 TO AUTHORIZE SALES OF 
LIQUOR  BY THE DRINK ON MEMORIAL DAY, THANKSGIVING, SUNDAYS AND DAILY 
UNTIL 2:00 A.M.; PROVIDING REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY.  THE ORDINANCE SHALL BE EFFECTIVE UPON PUBLICATION OF THIS 
SUMMARY. THE FULL TEXT OF THE SUMMARIZED ORDINANCE NO. ______ IS 
AVAILABLE AT COEUR D’ALENE CITY HALL, 710 E. MULLAN AVENUE, COEUR 
D’ALENE, IDAHO 83814 IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK.   

 
 
             
      Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 



   
 

Page 2 

 
 

STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR 
 
      I, Warren J. Wilson, am a Deputy City Attorney for the City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho.  I have 
examined the attached summary of Coeur d'Alene Ordinance No. ______, AMENDING 
MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 5.08.140 - HOURS OF SALE, and find it to be a true and complete 
summary of said ordinance which provides adequate notice to the public of the context thereof.  
 
      DATED this 21st day of May, 2013. 
 
 
                                          
                                  Warren J. Wilson, Chief Deputy City Attorney 
 



F:\MuniServices\Council Packets\May 21, 2013\Staff Report Alcohol Permit Parks Foundation.doc Page 1 of 1 

 GENERAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 
STAFF REPORT  

 
DATE:  April 23rd, 2013 and follow up on May 13, 2013  

FROM: Doug Eastwood, Parks Director  

SUBJECT: Special Event Beer Garden Permit   
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
DECISION POINT: 
Recommend to City Council the authorization of a beer garden for the Taste of the Coeur d’Alene’s 
event and the Smoke on the Water event hosted by the Panhandle Kiwanis and the Panhandle Parks 
Foundation respectively.   
 
HISTORY: 
Alcohol has not been permitted on public property since the late 1960’s.  We have had many requests 
to allow alcohol in the parks and in 2007 we launched a pilot program at Riverstone Park.   We 
average 12 permits per year at Riverstone Park.   More recently alcohol permits have been issued for 
use at the Library and the Jewett House.  The Panhandle Kiwanis Club holds an annual event at the 
City Park the first weekend of August.  The Panhandle Parks Foundation would only be in the City 
Park for one event held during the Labor Day Weekend.   After this year they will move their event to 
the new McEuen Park Site.   
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
Fees for the permit will be charged which includes security and monitoring during the hours of the 
event.    
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS: 
Our pilot program at Riverstone Park has been in effect for five years without a single incident.  The 
same criteria would be applied to these two events this event which includes hours of operation, 
security fees, monitoring fees and only a licensed caterer would be allowed to dispense the alcohol.  A 
designated area within Riverstone Park is set up for this purpose; the entire park is not open for alcohol 
consumption.  A similar designated area would be established for the City Park and McEuen Park.   
The Parks Department contracts with a private security company to be on site during the event.  The 
security company is there to remind people not to exit the established beer garden area with any 
alcohol.  The Parks Department also has an employee on site to assist with routine park maintenance 
associated with the event.   A licensed caterer, one with an alcohol license, also has a ‘built-in’ 
responsibility to assure that people are drinking responsibly.  The Riverstone pilot program is an 
example that the process works as intended.  Since the recommendation for approval from the Park 
and Recreation Commission on April 15, 2013 the Panhandle Kiwanis has decided against perusing 
the beer garden at their event.   
 
DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommend that City Council authorize a site specific/event specific alcohol permit to the Panhandle 
Kiwanis Club and the Panhandle Parks Foundation for a beer garden that their respective for their 
annual events.   



 

Page 1   

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 13-1009 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF COEUR 
D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 
4.25.030 TO ALLOW ALCOHOL TO BE SERVED AT RIVERSTONE PARK GAZEBO, THE 
JEWETT HOUSE, CITY PARK AND MCEUEN PARK BY PERMIT ONLY; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY OF THIS 
ORDINANCE AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF. 
 

WHEREAS, it is deemed by the Mayor and City Council to be in the best interests of the 
City of Coeur d'Alene that said amendments be adopted; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene: 
 
 
SECTION 1. That Coeur d'Alene Municipal Code Section 4.25.030 is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
 
4.25.030: BEER, WINE AND LIQUOR PROHIBITIONS ON PUBLIC PROPERTY: 
  
A.  No person shall possess any container, whether open or not, containing any beer, wine or 

other alcoholic beverage on any city owned, leased or maintained beach, natural area, park, 
playground or play field.  

 
B.   The provisions of this section do not apply to prohibit the city from issuing permits for the 

possession and consumption of beer, wine or other alcoholic beverages at the following 
locations: 

     
1.  Riverstone Park gazebo and amphitheater;  

 
2. Jewett House. 
 
3.  City Park;  
 
4.  McEuen Park:  

 
 
SECTION 2.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 
 



 

Page 2   

SECTION 3.  Neither the adoption of this ordinance nor the repeal of any ordinance shall, in any 
manner, affect the prosecution for violation of such ordinance committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance or be construed as a waiver of any license or penalty due under any such ordinance 
or in any manner affect the validity of any action heretofore taken by the City of Coeur d'Alene City 
Council or the validity of any such action to be taken upon matters pending before the City Council 
on the effective date of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 4.  The provisions of this ordinance are severable and if any provision, clause, sentence, 
subsection, word or part thereof is held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional or inapplicable to any 
person or circumstance, such illegality, invalidity or unconstitutionality or inapplicability shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions, clauses, sentences, subsections, words or parts of 
this ordinance or their application to other persons or circumstances.  It is hereby declared to be the 
legislative intent that this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal, invalid or 
unconstitutional provision, clause sentence, subsection, word, or part had not been included therein, 
and if such person or circumstance to which the ordinance or part thereof is held inapplicable had 
been specifically exempt therefrom.   
 
SECTION 5.  After its passage and adoption, a summary of this Ordinance, under the provisions 
of the Idaho Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City of Coeur 
d'Alene, and upon such publication shall be in full force and effect.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED, ADOPTED and SIGNED this 21st day of May, 2013.  
 
 
 
 
                                   ________________________________ 
                                   Sandi Bloem, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 



 

Page 1 

SUMMARY OF COEUR D’ALENE ORDINANCE  NO. _______ 
AMENDING M.C. SECTION 4.25.030 BEER, WINE, AND LIQUOR PROHIBITIONS ON 

PUBLIC PROPERTY 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF COEUR 
D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 
4.25.030 TO ALLOW ALCOHOL TO BE SERVED AT RIVERSTONE PARK GAZEBO, THE 
JEWETT HOUSE, CITY PARK AND MCEUEN PARK BY PERMIT ONLY; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH AND PROVIDING 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. THE ORDINANCE SHALL BE EFFECTIVE UPON 
PUBLICATION OF THIS SUMMARY.  THE FULL TEXT OF THE SUMMARIZED 
ORDINANCE NO. ______ IS AVAILABLE AT COEUR D’ALENE CITY HALL, 710 E. 
MULLAN AVENUE, COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO 83814 IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY 
CLERK.   

 
 
             
      Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 2 

 
 

STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR 
 
 I, Michael Gridley, City Attorney for the City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho.  I have examined the 
attached summary of Coeur d'Alene Ordinance No. 3460, AMENDING M.C. SECTION 4.25.030 
AMENDING M.C. SECTION 4.25.030 BEER, WINE, AND LIQUOR PROHIBITIONS ON 
PUBLIC PROPERTY, and find it to be a true and complete summary of said ordinance which 
provides adequate notice to the public of the context thereof. 
 
      DATED this 21st day of May, 2013. 
 
 
                                          
                                  Michael Gridley, City Attorney 
 
  



TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Wayne Longo, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Request to hire two officers 
 
DATE: May 7, 2013 
 
Decision Point:  Authorization to off-set the grant amount and hire two additional police 
officers.  
 
History:  Due to the growth of the City of Coeur d’Alene in the last five years, Serious Crime 
Incident reports for Patrol and Investigations have increased considerably (up 22% over past 
10yrs).   
  
At the same time, the number of scheduled events, such as the 4th of July, Ironman, Car d’Alene, 
and many other specialized occasions (Return of Diamond Cup Hydro-Races), is impacting 
Patrol and Investigations to such a degree that the morale of our officers is being affected, our 
overtime budget stressed, and our patrol manning minimized.  Not only do the above events 
impact our Department, but we also see manning concerns when we have scheduled vacations, 
comp time use and mandatory military leave, not to mention a major crime investigation or 
officer injuries.   

 
With the increased growth of the City, the Police Department has not been able to keep up with 
the requested increase in personnel and we continue to supplement necessary police programs, 
such as our Gang Investigations and Narcotic K-9, with officers from the Patrol Division. These 
are needed and necessary forms of policing; however, we need to maintain our staffing levels in 
the Patrol Division. Currently, the Police Department has two full-time police officer positions 
open, however these position have not been filled due to financial impacts due to the recession.    
 
Financial Analysis: PATROL OFFICER 
 
  WAGES - New officer   $44,054 
  Benefits      
  Holiday Pay      
  Education Incentive          395 
  FICA         3,370 
  PERS         5,138 
  Workers Compensation       1,419 
  MSA         1,200 

Life Insurance                  196 
  Disability               1,135 
  Health Insurance          16,052 
  Dental Insurance                 330 

TOTAL BENEFITS   $29,235 
 

TOTAL WAGES & BENEFITS        $73,289 
 

 X 2 OFFICERS = $ 146,578 
  



Performance Analysis:  The addition of two officers will allow us to replace officers who have 
been assigned to other areas such as the Gangs Unit or K-9. It also gives us the ability to provide 
a better level of service to the community we support and bring our number of officers closer to 
the nationally recognized level of officers per 1000 population.  
 
Decision Point:  Authorization to off-set the grant amount and hire two additional police 
officers.  































GENERAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
DATE: May 13, 2013  
FROM: Mike Gridley on behalf of the CDA 2030 Project Coordination Group 
SUBJECT: City participation in CDA 2030 community visioning process 
===================================================================== 
DECISION POINT: 
Should the City participate in the CDA 2030 community visioning process by providing financial 
and in-kind support?  
 
HISTORY: 
In 2000 the City sponsored a community visioning process called CDA 2020.  The process asked 
citizens to share their vision for the Coeur d’Alene area for the next 20 years.  The process resulted 
in a document that established the community’s vision, values and goals (see attached CDA 2020 
brochure).  The document helped provide a community focus and framework for achieving 
community goals.  Public meetings held in February and April of this year indicate that there is 
strong community support to create a new vision statement that would reflect the community’s 
vision for the future.  An ad hoc Community Advisory Committee (CAC) has been enlisted to gauge 
interest and to help steer the project (see attached list of CAC members).  From this Committee a 
Project Coordination Group (PCG) led by Dr. Charles Buck from the University of Idaho, has 
stepped forward to organize the visioning process and to establish financial and in-kind support (see 
attached CDA 2030 Visioning Project Prospectus).  As stated in the Prospectus, the visioning 
process is anticipated to take 12 -15 months and result in concrete action plans to carry out the 
community’s goals.  A tentative budget of roughly $10,000 per month has been established based on 
the resources needed to conduct an effective, efficient and professional visioning process. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
Although most community visioning projects are financed entirely by city government, the CAC 
feels strongly that the project should not be totally funded by tax supported entities.  The visioning 
process is a community process and it is felt that to make it a success funding should come from the 
broader community.  However, because the primary beneficiaries of the results of the visioning 
process will be the citizens of Coeur d’Alene, the PCG has suggested that the City contribute 20% of 
the budget ($30,000) to the project in addition to providing in-kind support as needed. We currently 
have pledges or contributions from PCG members of approximately $40,000 and we have a goal of 
having pledges or contributions equal to $100,000 by June 1, 2013 with the remaining funding to be 
secured over the next several months.  
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS: 
In the simplest terms, visioning is a planning process through which a community creates a shared 
vision for its future and begins to make it a reality.  There are five key characteristics of the 
visioning process: 1) understanding the whole community; 2) reflecting core community values; 3) 
addressing emerging trends and issues; 4) envisioning a preferred future; and, 5) promoting local 
action.  
 



The recognized benefits of visioning includes: 1) brings community members together in a uniquely 
different context to consider their common future; 2) encourages the community to explore new 
ideas and possibilities; 3) creates a shared sense of direction and a framework for future community 
decisions; 4) produces a process that results in concrete goals and strategies for action; 5) enriches 
public involvement by expanding the terms and scope of civic engagement; 6) fosters new 
leadership in citizens who have not been previously active in public life; 7) promotes active 
partnerships among government, business, civic, and nonprofit organizations; and, 8) strengthens 
community cohesion and “social capital.”  Simply engaging in the process of visioning can be as 
rewarding as its products. 
 
Most, if not all, successful cities and companies engage in strategic visioning and planning for the 
future.  To remain a top-tier community and be competitive in the future, Coeur d’Alene must listen 
to the community’s dreams and visions and take concrete steps to achieve them.  The proposed 
visioning process will help achieve these goals and pay back the money invested many times over.  
 
DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION: 
The City should approve contributing $30,000 and in-kind support as appropriate to the CDA 2030 
visioning project.  
 
 
 
 
 
  



COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 5-13-2013 
 

1. Steven Ames – Planning Consultant 
2. Hazel Bauman – USD271    
3. Sandi Bloem -  Mayor 
4. Joe Dunlap (Mark Browning) – NIC 
5. Charles Buck – University of Idaho 
6. Jeff Conroy – St. Vincent DePaul 
7. Denny Davis – LCDC  
8. Jennifer Drake – Citizen leader 
9. Eden Irgens – Coeur d’Alene Arts Commission 
10. Amy Evans – Coeur d’Alene Planning Commission 
11. Michelle Fink – North Idaho Title  
12. Dan Gookin – City Councilman 
13. Greg Green – Fatbeam 
14. Steve Griffitts - Jobs Plus 
15. Helo Hancock  (Heather Keen) – Coeur d’Alene Tribe 
16.  Eric Keck – Ground Force Industries 
17. Glen Miles – Kootenai Metropolitan Planning Organization 
18. Charlie Miller – North Idaho Centennial Trail Foundation   
19. Doug Miller -  Museum of North Idaho 
20. Jon Ness – Kootenai Health 
21. Jai Nelson – Kootenai County  
22. Frank Orzell – Citizen leader 
23. Rocky Owens – Lewis Clark State College 
24. Ashley Piaskowski – Kootenai County Young Professionals  
25. Jim Pierce – Washington Trust Bank   
26. Bill Reagan – Hagadone Hospitality 
27. Mary Sanderson – Physician 
28. Patty Shea (Sharman Schmitt)  – Avista 
29. John Stone – Riverstone   
30. Craig Sumey – Presbyterian minister   
31. Shawn Swanby – Ednetics    
32. Janet Torline – Kootenai Environmental Alliance   
33. Steve Widmyer – Widmyer Properties 
34. Steve Wilson (Ryan Nipp) – CDA Chamber of Commerce      
35. Wendy Gabriel – City Administrator 
36. Dave Yadon - Planning Director 
37. Mike Gridley – City Attorney 

 
 
 



 Project Structure, April 2013 
 

COEUR D’ALENE CITY VISIONING PROJECT PROSPECTUS – Discussion Draft 
    
Why a Vision for Coeur d’Alene? 
 
It has been well over a decade since the 
Coeur d’Alene 2020 project created a 
vision for our community. A lot has 
happened since then: times have 
changed, the world has changed, and so 
has Coeur d’Alene.   

In recent months, community leaders 
have been discussing how Coeur d’Alene 
can create a new vision for the future.  
What kind of community do we want to 
be in 2020, 2030 or beyond?  And how 
can we make that vision a reality?   

Working in alliance with community 
leaders representing key public, private, civic, and community-based organizations, an ad hoc Project 
Coordination Group has been investigating a new visioning process – and how to make it happen. 
 
The Process 
 
The group is proposing Cd’A 2030 – a comprehensive visioning process for greater Coeur d’Alene, 
designed to engage the entire community in creating a new long-range vision.  Unlike the original 2020 
effort, Cd’A 2030 also will develop a detailed action plan to help ensure that community priorities 
established through the visioning process are achieved.   

The visioning process will be guided by principles that encourage community involvement: the process 
will be broad-based, bringing people of all backgrounds and perspectives together in a respectful, civil 
dialogue about the future, it will be an open public process that builds trust and fosters positive 
collaboration, and it will focus on producing concrete results that help create a legacy for future 
generations.  

 
Proposed Timeline, Activities, Results & Benefits 
 
Based on input to date, an outline of the new 
visioning process has been created:  The visioning 
process will focus on greater Coeur d’Alene, with 
input from bordering communities and the Coeur 
d’Alene Tribe.  The process will run between 12 and 
15 months.   Through a blend of public forums and 

Key Results and Benefits 
∞ Community profile and trends analysis 
∞ Renewed community vision 
∞ Strategic action plan with ‘easy wins’ 
∞ Implementation strategy & partners 
∞ New public-private-civic-tribal partnerships 
∞ Engaged community and citizens 
∞ New models for community collaboration 

www.caliber-construction.com 



 Project Structure, April 2013 
 
workshops, web-based tools and social media, focus- and working groups, and community surveys, 
citizens will be invited to express their ideas at every juncture.   

The project will produce a profile of our community today – its strengths, weakness, and shared values – 
as well an analysis of trends and issues that might affect our future.  And, it will result in a long-term 
vision and a five-year action plan and implementation strategy.   

The vision and plan will be community “owned” with a number of public, private, civic and community-
based partners involved in plan implementation. An implementation strategy will speak to 
maintaining these activities in years to come, so the vision and 
plan remain “living” documents that can be periodically renewed 
and updated. 
 
Proposed Project Structure and Budget 
 
A Community Advisory Committee (CAC) will mirror greater 
Coeur d’Alene with ~30 community leaders that advise on 
visioning project goals, activities and outcomes. Committee 
members will meet approximately quarterly and have ready 
access to the project Management Team and Project Coordinator. 
CAC member organizations will provide financial support for the 
project. 

The Project Coordination Group (PCG) will include leaders from organizations that commit to a 
successful visioning process with significant financial support and in-kind resources. The PCG will 
provide overall coordination for the visioning process and for project activities. This group will meet 
monthly to ensure that the process moves forward.  

To facilitate day-to-day progress and decision-making, a PCG Management Team will be identified that 
includes key PCG members, the Project Coordinator (to be named) and Project Consultant (also to be 
named). This team will meet frequently to plan activities, track progress and ensure that the overall 
project adheres to agreed upon goals and timeline. The University of Idaho - Coeur d’Alene will lead the 
PCG Management Team while the Coeur d’Alene Chamber will be the designated nonprofit organization, 
serving as the fiscal agent and providing logistics for the process. 

Participant organizations will provide in-kind and financial 
resources to enable project success. Additional funding will be 
obtained from individuals, businesses and other community 
organizations to meet the exciting challenge of creating a Cd’A 
2030 vision in the 12-15 month timeframe. The PCG will create a 
project business model and funding strategy to meet the 
projected budget. 
 
Remarkable achievements have come from the original Cd’A 
2020 vision, completed in 2000. Cd’A 2030 will enable the 
community to plan for an even brighter future! 

 
Who to Contact And How to Learn More: 

Mike Gridley, City of CDA, mgridley@cdaid.org, 208-769-2330 

Projected Cd’A 2030 Process Budget 
Project Coordinator, 0.8 FTE $42,000 
Admin. Assistant, 0.5 FTE $10,400 
Consultant , 15 mo. contract $50,000 
Advertising, website $12,000 
Community Surveys $14,000 
Dissemination materials $12,000 
Food, travel,  misc. expenses $10,000 
Approximate total $150,400 

Project Coordination Group (PCG)  
CDA Chamber of Commerce 
Higher Education Institutions 
 University of Idaho 
 Lewis and Clark State College 
 North Idaho College 
City of Coeur d’Alene 
JobsPlus 
Kootenai Health 
Avista  

mailto:mgridley@cdaid.org






PUBLIC HEARINGS 



staff report PY 2012 CAPER.doc 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
TO:    MAYOR BLOEM AND THE CITY COUNCIL  
DATE:   MAY 16, 2013 
FROM: RENATA MCLEOD, CITY CLERK 
RE: APPROVAL OF ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED PERFORMANCE AND 

EVALUATION REPORT (CAPER) FOR THE USE OF COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) FOR PLAN YEAR 2012.  

 

 
DECISION POINT:   
 

 To authorize the Plan Year 2012 Consolidate Performance and Evaluation Report 
(CAPER) for the use of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds.   

 
HISTORY:  The City is required to submit an annual performance report with a fifteen-day 
public comment period.  The notice of the public comment period was published on May 7, 
2013, and the public hearing notice was published on May 14, 2013, with the public comment 
period ending May 22, 2013.  No comments were received thus far.  
 
FINANCIAL:  No funds are being requested for this program.   
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS:  Authorizing this report will allow staff to submit the report 
timely, and stay in compliance with the HUD regulations.  
 
DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION:   
 

 To authorize the Plan Year 2012 Consolidate Performance and Evaluation Report 
(CAPER) for the use of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds.   

 
 



INFORMATION SECTION 
Including 

Correspondence 
Board, Commission, Committee Minutes 



Public Works Committee 05/13/13 1

May 13, 2013 
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 
4:00 p.m., Library Community Room 

 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT                                                STAFF PRESENT 
Council Member Woody McEvers                                           Amy Ferguson, Executive Assistant 
Council Member Dan Gookin     Jim Remitz, Capital Program Manager 
Council Member Deanna Goodlander    Jon Ingalls, Deputy City Administrator 
        Warren Wilson, Deputy City Attorney 
        Sid Fredrickson, WW Superintendent 
        Kenny Gabriel, Fire Chief 
        Jim Markley, Water Supt. 
        Wendy Gabriel, City Administrator 
        Troy Tymesen, Finance Director 
 
             
  
        
Item 1  Rejection of Atlas Well Bid  
Consent Calendar 
 
Jim Markley, Water Superintendent, presented a request that Council reject the only bid received for the 
drilling of the Atlas II Well because it was non-responsive, and authorize staff to enter into negotiation 
with the contractor once the contractor has acquired a public works license.   
 
Mr. Markley stated in the staff report that the Water Department is currently in the process of attempting 
to drill a new production well on property just north of Hanley Avenue and Atlas Road.  Despite 
aggressively seeking bids, only one bid was received, from Holt Services, Inc.  Unfortunately the sole 
bidder did not have a current public works contractor’s license in Idaho at the time of the bid opening 
which by Idaho Code disqualifies them from bidding.   The bid was $223,760, which is under the 
engineer’s estimate of $228,000.   Idaho Code provides that once the non-responsive bid is rejected, 
Council can then authorize staff to enter into negotiations with the contractor to award them the work 
once the contractor is properly licensed.  The contractor has said that they will honor the bid amount.  Mr. 
Markley would like to take the agreement directly to the consent calendar.  
 
Mr. Markley explained that they cast a “pretty wide net” for bidders for the project, and only one bid was 
received.  He believes the reason is the hole to be drilled is 24 inches and it takes specialized equipment 
and there are not a lot of companies that can do it.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Gookin, to recommend Council reject the sole non-
responsive bid of $223,760 from Holt Services, Inc. for the drilling of Atlas Well and authorize staff 
to enter into negotiations for an agreement with Holt Services, Inc. once they have acquired their 
public works contractor’s license.  Motion carried. 
 
 



Public Works Committee 05/13/13 2

Item 2  Fire Department Only Parking Zone on East Lakeshore Drive 
Consent Calendar 
 
Kenny Gabriel, Fire Chief, presented a request for Council approval of “No Parking – Fire Lane” signs on 
two locations on East Lakeshore Drive so Fire Department apparatus can safely stage while operating at 
that location.   
 
Chief Gabriel stated in his staff report that City Administration and the FD have been working with the 
11th Street Marina for a number of years regarding the lease of the area where the marina is located for 
moorage of public safety vessels.  One of the challenges faced at the 11th Street is FD access.  If the FD 
received a call which requires the use of the fire boat they would need a place to stage the responding 
apparatus is a quick manner.  The proposed FIRE LANE gives quick access to the east gate at the 11th 
Street Marina and a straight approach to the boats moorage area.   
 
Chief Gabriel stated that the neighboring property owner has agreed to giving them 50 feet of parking for 
a fire lane.  Councilman McEvers asked about the neighboring property being for sale and how that would 
affect the parking.  Mr. Wilson commented that the city council is charged with determining where no 
parking zones are placed. 
   
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by McEvers, to recommend Council approval of NO 
PARKING – FIRE LANE signs to be placed on East Lakeshore Drive for Fire Department access 
to the 11st Street Marina.  Motion carried.   
 
 
Item 3  Amendment #1 to the July 19, 2011 Professional Services Agreement 
  with HDR Engineering, Inc. for WWTP Phase 5C-1 Construction 
  Administration Services 
Consent Calendar 
 
Jim Remitz, Capital Program Manager, presented a request for council approval of Amendment No. 1 
Revised to the July 19, 2011 Agreement between the City of Coeur d’Alene and HDR Engineering, Inc.  
Amendment No. 1 Revised will provide construction administration services during the construction of 
WWTP Phase 5C.1: Initial Tertiary Filtration/Nitrification Improvements.  This revised amendment 
replaces the previously approved Amendment No. 1 (July 3, 2012) for additional professional services for 
the design of secondary aeration improvements that due to wastewater budget concerns at the time, was 
never executed.  Amendment No. 1 includes the design of the secondary aeration improvements and the 
construction administration for these improvements as part of Phase 5C.1.  Funding for this Amendment 
No. 1 Revised is budgeted in the current FY 2012/2013 Wastewater Budget. 
 
Mr. Remitz explained that the Phase 5 project deals with a lot of the biological nutrient removal.  The 
phase will be split into two and possibly three phases.  They want to do some additional full scale testing 
of the tertiary membrane filters and are ready to go out to bid for the construction phase.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Gookin, to recommend Council approval of 
Resolution No. 13-___ authorizing Amendment #1, Revised, to the July 19, 2011 Professional 
Services Agreement between the City of Coeur d’Alene and HDR Engineering, Inc. for construction 
administration services in the amount of $1,243,098.  Motion carried. 
 
 



Public Works Committee 05/13/13 3

Item 4  Authorization to Solicit Bids for the Construction of WWTP Phase 
  5C-1: Initial Tertiary Membrane Filtration/Nitrification Improvements  
Consent Calendar 
 
Jim Remitz, Capital Program Manager, presented a request for council approval of the plans and 
specifications for the construction of Phase 5C.1 and authorizing the solicitation for construction bids for 
this project.   
 
Mr. Remitz stated in his staff report that the proposed improvements will provide the necessary buildings, 
tankage, equipment, and piping to provide for the initial tertiary membrane filtration and nitrification 
improvements necessary for the enhanced biological nutrient removal capabilities required by the new 
discharge permit.    Contractor prequalification has been conducted in accordance with Idaho code, and 
the city has applied for and anticipates receiving a low interest loan from the Idaho Department of 
Environmental Quality to provide the funding for this project.  The loan will be re-paid by the recently 
approved issuance of revenue bonds.  The Wastewater Fund currently has a sufficient cash reserve 
balance to begin the construction of this 18 month project. 
 
Mr. Remitz said that they hope to advertise for the bids on May 24th, open the bids on June 18th, and bring 
it before the council for the award on July 2nd.  They have approximately six prequalified bidders.  He 
further explained that some of the work will be on the existing plant.  The project will be funded by a 
DEQ loan which should be forthcoming on May 24th.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Gookin, to recommend Council approval of the plans 
and specifications and authorize the solicitation of bids for the construction of WWTP Phase 5C-1: 
Initial Tertiary Filtration/Nitrification Improvements.   Motion carried. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 4:16   p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Amy C. Ferguson           
Public Works Committee Liaison 



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE 

Treasurer's Report of Cash and Investment Transactions

 BALANCE DISBURSE- BALANCE
    FUND 3/31/2013 RECEIPTS MENTS 4/30/2013

General-Designated $532,158 $5,587 $6,344 $531,401
General-Undesignated 6,838,067    6,232,627    6,996,037      6,074,657  
Special Revenue:
   Library 267,886       13,774         110,648         171,012     
   CDBG (161)             16,875         17,207           (493)           
   Cemetery 76,691         31,762         22,951           85,502       
   Parks Capital Improvements 853,247       7,210           194,384         666,073     
   Impact Fees 2,060,578    248,247       2,308,825  
   Annexation Fees 522              522            
   Insurance 3,323,086    498              154,535         3,169,049  
   Cemetery P/C 1,828,685    3,720           6,575             1,825,830  
   Jewett House 7,792           13                821                6,984         
   Reforestation 12,043         1,171           13,214       
   Street Trees 185,164       7,528           14,294           178,398     
   Community Canopy 1,987           150              2,137         
   CdA Arts Commission 1,134           300              1,434         
   Public Art Fund 94,779           14                  13,370            81,423         
   Public Art Fund - LCDC 495,073         74                  150                 494,997       
   Public Art Fund - Maintenance 117,281         18                  1,622              115,677       
Debt Service:
   2002 & 2006 G.O. Bonds 930,694       9,123           939,817     
   LID Guarantee 45,236         537              45,773       
   LID 130 Lakeside / Ramsey / Industrial Park 49,004         49,004       
   LID 146 Northwest Boulevard 75,552           83,760            (8,208)          
   LID 149 4th Street 1,046             1,046           
Capital Projects:
  Street Projects 49,081         136,363       57,506           127,938     
Enterprise:
   Street Lights 128,915         42,563           86,031            85,447         
   Water 37,715           215,604         315,982          (62,663)        
   Water Capitalization Fees 2,377,799      141,200         26,412            2,492,587    
   Wastewater 6,543,357    485,570       480,826         6,548,101  
   Wastewater-Reserved 1,171,275    27,500         1,198,775  
   WWTP Capitalization Fees 1,554,275    211,215       1,765,490  
   WW Property Mgmt 60,668         60,668       
   Sanitation (281,793)      280,090       265,483         (267,186)    
   Public Parking (70,621)        3,536             (74,157)      
   Stormwater Mgmt 102,468       87,454         11,408           178,514     
   Wastewater Debt Service 1,012,603    151              1,012,754  
Fiduciary Funds:
   Kootenai County Solid Waste Billing 168,545       170,375       168,545         170,375     
   LID Advance Payments 895              40                935            
   Police Retirement 1,415,764    15,365         24,102           1,407,027  
   Sales Tax 1,705           1,422           1,705             1,422         
   BID 144,909       3,884           148,793     
   Homeless Trust Fund 402              373              402                373            

GRAND TOTAL $32,215,505 $8,398,397 $9,064,636 $31,549,266



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
BUDGET STATUS REPORT
SEVEN MONTHS ENDED

30-Apr-2013

FUND OR TYPE OF TOTAL SPENT THRU PERCENT
DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE BUDGETED 4/30/2013 EXPENDED

Mayor/Council Personnel Services $207,739 $121,026 58%
Services/Supplies 12,275 4,369 36%

Administration Personnel Services 330,656 200,071 61%
Services/Supplies 69,210 17,885 26%

Finance Personnel Services 590,947 338,510 57%
Services/Supplies 85,980 60,640 71%

Municipal Services Personnel Services 923,631 566,347 61%
Services/Supplies 437,018 282,740 65%
Capital Outlay 9,000

Human Resources Personnel Services 214,763 125,847 59%
Services/Supplies 29,200 13,778 47%

Legal Personnel Services 1,335,864 775,895 58%
Services/Supplies 93,033 44,268 48%

Planning Personnel Services 450,912 258,451         57%
Services/Supplies 24,600 3,038 12%

Building Maintenance Personnel Services 279,060 156,580 56%
Services/Supplies 119,359 57,878 48%
Capital Outlay

Police Personnel Services 8,996,923 5,069,161 56%
Services/Supplies 830,019 422,041 51%
Capital Outlay 142,749 85,357 60%

Fire Personnel Services 7,315,937 4,232,415 58%
Services/Supplies 413,735 218,606 53%
Capital Outlay

General Government Services/Supplies 192,635 192,467 100%
Capital Outlay 750,000 750,000 100%

Byrne Grant (Federal) Personnel Services 53,079 87,324 165%
Services/Supplies 95,998          42,923 45%
Capital Outlay 59,820

COPS Grant Personnel Services 69,819 65,648 94%
Services/Supplies

CdA Drug Task Force Services/Supplies 36,700 27,901 76%
Capital Outlay

Streets Personnel Services 1,800,904 1,009,770 56%
Services/Supplies 589,400 290,795 49%
Capital Outlay



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
BUDGET STATUS REPORT
SEVEN MONTHS ENDED

30-Apr-2013

FUND OR TYPE OF TOTAL SPENT THRU PERCENT
DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE BUDGETED 4/30/2013 EXPENDED

ADA Sidewalk Abatement Personnel Services 182,335 84,935 47%
Services/Supplies 38,450 6,598 17%

Engineering Services Personnel Services 508,936 297,743 59%
Services/Supplies 2,694,600 232,740 9%
Capital Outlay

Parks Personnel Services 1,257,438 652,978 52%
Services/Supplies 408,450 151,715 37%
Capital Outlay

Recreation Personnel Services 625,654 265,470 42%
Services/Supplies 138,800 73,814 53%

Building Inspection Personnel Services 697,044 422,818 61%
Services/Supplies 24,395 10,477 43%

    Total General Fund 33,077,247 17,780,839 54%

Library Personnel Services 1,004,510 555,288 55%
Services/Supplies 182,450 90,576 50%
Capital Outlay 92,000 38,564 42%

CDBG Services/Supplies 267,325 35,545 13%

Cemetery Personnel Services 137,465 68,766 50%
Services/Supplies 86,835 43,028 50%
Capital Outlay 15,000

Impact Fees Services/Supplies 913,133 803,684 88%

Annexation Fees Services/Supplies 70,000 70,000 100%

Parks Capital Improvements Capital Outlay 1,870,524 684,112 37%

Insurance Services/Supplies 264,000 204,539 77%

Cemetery Perpetual Care Services/Supplies 98,000 56,779 58%

Jewett House Services/Supplies 42,000 11,499 27%

Reforestation Services/Supplies 1,500 1,988 133%

Street Trees Services/Supplies 65,000 19,994 31%

Community Canopy Services/Supplies 1,500 402 27%

CdA Arts Commission Services/Supplies 7,000 74 1%

Public Art Fund Services/Supplies 245,000 41,746 17%

     Total Special Revenue 5,363,242 2,726,584 51%

Debt Service Fund 1,381,865 344,158 25%



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
BUDGET STATUS REPORT
SEVEN MONTHS ENDED

30-Apr-2013

FUND OR TYPE OF TOTAL SPENT THRU PERCENT
DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE BUDGETED 4/30/2013 EXPENDED

Govt Way - Dalton to Hanley Capital Outlay 6,937
Govt Way - Hanley to Prairie Capital Outlay 420,000 70,326 17%
Levee Certification Capital Outlay 250,000         22,643
15th Street - Lunceford to Dalton Capital Outlay 1,321
3rd / Harrison signal Capital Outlay 100,000 11,621
15th Street - Harrison to Best Capital Outlay 5,600

      Total Capital Projects Funds 770,000 118,448 15%

Street Lights Services/Supplies 570,050         279,518         49%

Water Personnel Services 1,569,132 892,024 57%
Services/Supplies 4,167,607 716,313 17%
Capital Outlay 1,865,550 710,713 38%

Water Capitalization Fees Services/Supplies 850,000

Wastewater Personnel Services 2,231,295 1,193,073 53%
Services/Supplies 6,327,788 2,119,507 33%
Capital Outlay 8,634,600 637,503 7%
Debt Service 2,133,241 662,922 31%

WW Capitalization Services/Supplies 879,336

Sanitation Services/Supplies 3,285,480 1,954,626 59%

Public Parking Services/Supplies 222,729 134,708 60%
Capital Outlay 385,000 326,651 85%

Stormwater Mgmt Personnel Services 97,846 56,313 58%
Services/Supplies 526,121 50,971 10%
Capital Outlay 300,000 2,665 1%

     Total Enterprise Funds 34,045,775 9,737,507 29%

Kootenai County Solid Waste 2,200,000      1,090,329      50%
Police Retirement 176,000 102,777 58%
Business Improvement District 156,000 90,000 58%
Homeless Trust Fund 6,100 2,644 43%

     Total Fiduciary Funds 2,538,100 1,285,750 51%

     TOTALS: $77,176,229 $31,993,286 41%


	Agenda 05/21/13
	Minutes 05/07/13
	Consent Resolution 13-029
	SR - Agr with Shaffer Towing
	SR - Rejection of Atlas Well Bid & Authorization to Enter into Negotiations with Holt Services
	SR - Amendment #1 to Prof Svcs Agr with HDR for WWTP Phase 5C-1
	SR - Fire Dept. Only Parking Zone
	SR - Authorization to Solicit Bids - WWTP Phase 5C-1
	Setting of Public Hearing - Annex of 3528 W. Seltice Way
	SR - Fireworks Stands
	GSMinutes 051313
	SR - Lease Extension with U of I for Harbor Center
	SR - Removal of Alley Garbage Service 
	SR - 4th Street Roundabout
	SR - Design Review Fees
	SR - Allowance of Sale of Alcohol 
	SR - Allowance of Special Permits for Alcohol within Specific City-Owned Properties
	SR - Request for Approval of Grant for Patrol Officers
	SR - CDA 2030 Community Visioning
	SR - CAPER Plan Year 2012 Report
	Information Section



